






CITY OF LEON VALLEY
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

Leon Valley City Council Chambers
6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238

Tuesday, August 02, 2016

MINUTES
The City Council of the City of Leon Valley, Texas met on the 2nd day of August, 2016 at
the Leon Valley City Council Chambers located at 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley,
Texas for the purpose of the following business.

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Call to order.

Mayor Pro-Tem David Jordan called the Regular City Council Meeting to order at 7:00
p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jordan asked that the minutes reflect that the following members of City
Council were present: Council Members Belinda Ealy, Monica Alcocer, Benny Martinez
and David Jordan. Mayor Chris Riley and Council Members David Edwards were
excused.

Also in attendance were:

City Manager Kelly Kuenstler, ACM/HR Director Crystal Caldera, City Secretary
Saundra Passailaigue, City Attorney Denise Frederick, Public Works Director Melinda
Moritz, Assistant Public Works Director David Dimaline, Community Development
Director Elizabeth Carol, Communication Director Kristie Flores, Fire Chief Luis Valdez,
Assistant Police Chief Ray Lacy and LVFD Captain Oscar Valdez.

Citizens to Be Heard and Time for Objections to the Consent Agenda.

There were no citizens to speak.

Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation for the June 11th Neighborhood
Renewal Program participants. M&C #2016-08-02-01 (D. Dimaline)

Assistant Public Works Director David Dimaline presented the item to recognize
volunteers for their service during the City of Leon Valley’s Neighborhood Renewal
Program (NRP) which was held on June 11, 2016. Assistant Public Works Director

ITEM 4

1



Dimaline announced that the City of Leon Valley held its first Neighborhood Renewal
Program (NRP) that included an area within a portion of the Old Mill Subdivision. The
area was bounded by Timberhill, Blacksmith, and Autumn Chase. In the month leading
up to June 11th, Public Works crews repaired sidewalks, mowed and trimmed drainage
areas, replaced stop signs, cleaned stormwater drainage inlets, painted hand railings
and fire hydrants. An additional mid-block fire hydrant and valve was installed for
improved coverage for the neighborhood. In addition, Code Compliance staff painted
over graffiti in the area. A total of 24 volunteers assisted with the NRP, and met on June
11, 2016 to paint a house located on Blacksmith. The house received new paint on the
trim and exterior areas, minor repairs, and trimming of trees. The Fire Department
helped with the house painting, and also had staff going to each house in the area to
test and replace smoke detectors. The Home Depot participated on June 11th by
sending employees, building materials and providing skills to replace some necessary
woodwork. Ms. Libby Wechtenhiser was instrumental in providing her leadership and
assistance during the entire event.  Mr. Richard Burge is the Store Manager at the local
PPG Paints. Mr. Burge with PPG Paints provided the City with five gallons of free paint,
as well as a discount on materials.

The volunteers who participated in City’s 1st NRP are:  Sergio Cardenas, Councilwoman
Monica Alcocer, Councilwoman Belinda Ealy, Councilman David Jordan, Donna
Charles, Dulce De La Cerda, Guisha Gonzalez, Richard W. Burge (PPG Paints, Store
Manager), Elizabeth R. Wechtenhiser (The Home Depot, Store Manager), Magdalena
R. Cisneros, Lloyd K. Perrin, Jesus Rodriguez, Saundra Passailaigue (CoLV), Sal
Martinez (CoLV), Don Burgess (CoLV), Lacie Clements, Joseph Martinez, Luis Valdez
(CoLV FD), John Suhr (CoLV FD), Eric Burnside (CoLV FD), Jaaron Thomas (CoLV
FD), Steven Keith (CoLV FD), Jason Prado (CoLV FD) and Mike Dizzine (CoLV FD).

Assistant Public Works Director Dimaline concluded the presentation saying the City’s
goal is to schedule two NRP cleanups each year to coincide with brush and bulky item
pickup. The City’s next scheduled NRP is for September 17, 2016, and will also occur in
the Old Mill Subdivision. We are looking forward to our second NRP, and a call for
volunteers will be coming soon.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jordan presented certificates to participants that were present.

Presentation of Good Neighbor Award to the Leon Valley Church of Latter Day
Saints.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jordan presented the Good Neighbor Award to Kathy Christiansen on
behalf of the Leon Valley Church of Latter Day Saints for their hospitality and support
given to the City during the July 4th event.

2



CONSENT AGENDA

Approval of City Council Minutes. (S. Passailaigue)
a) July 11, 2016 Special City Council Meeting
b) July 18, 2016 Special City Council Meeting
c) July 19, 2016 Special City Council Meeting
d) July 19, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting
e) July 23, 2016 Coffee with the Mayor and City Council
f) July 27, 2016 City Council & LVEDC Special Meeting

Consider, discuss and possible action on a final Replat #2016-460, to replat
approximately 0.5372 acre tract of land, being Lot 37, Block J CB 4446A to Lots 49
and 50, Block J, CB 4446A out of the Linkwood Additions Subdivision generally
located at 7705 Linkview Drive. M&C #2016-08-02-02 (E. Carol)

Consider, discuss and possible action to reschedule the October 4, 2016 Regular
City Council meeting to October 3, 2016 in an effort to accommodate City Council
and staff who will be attending the TML Annual Conference in Austin, Texas
October 4th–7th.

A motion was made by Council Member Monica Alcocer and seconded by Council
Member Benny Martinez, to approve Consent Agenda Item #5 (July 11, 2016 Special
City Council Meeting,  July 18, 2016 Special City Council Meeting, July 19, 2016
Special City Council Meeting, July 19, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting, July 23, 2016
Coffee with the Mayor and City Council and July 27, 2016 City Council & LVEDC
Special Meeting), Item #6 (Replat #2016-460 Ordinance No. 16-027), and Item #7
(October 2016 City Council meeting date) as presented. Upon a unanimous vote, Mayor
Pro-Tem announced the motion carried.

REGULAR AGENDA

Consider, Discuss and Possible Action to Authorize the City Manager to Enter
into a Contract With IDS Engineering Group for the Design, Engineering, and
Construction Management for the Reconstruction of the Evers Road Huebner
Creek Bridge, and Approve Reallocation of Existing Funds from Stormwater
Capital Projects. M&C #2016-08-02-03 (M. Moritz)

Public Works Director Melinda Moritz presented the item to ask City Council to
authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with IDS Engineering for the design,
engineering, and construction management of the Evers Road Huebner Creek bridge,
and approve a reallocation of existing funds in the Stormwater Capital Projects line item
in the amount of $80,000. The City Manager has negotiated a contract with this firm for
the engineering portion of this project and is now ready to move forward. The estimated
timeline for this project is as follows: August – September 2016 engineering and design;
October – February 2017 TxDOT & utility review; March final design, TxDOT approval ;
April bid advertisement; May – June Council approval of bidder, start construction; and

3



construction completed in the December January 2018 timeframe, weather
permitting.

Public Works Director Moritz continued by presenting the fiscal impact the project would
have which was: engineering design $298,481; construction management $178,440;
and total engineering $476,921. The amount needed this fiscal year is $80,000 and the
amount needed next fiscal year would be $396,921. The total construction cost is
$1,716,000 of that the City’s portion would be $343,200 and the MPO portion
$1,372,800.

Public Works Director Moritz added that in May of this year, the City Council approved a
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) budget adjustment in the amount of
$282,000 for the construction of drainage facilities at Huebner and Timberhill, but
because the County Commissioner’s Court just gave final approval of the project last
week, staff has been unable to advertise bids for this project until now. The anticipated
bid award won’t be until mid-September, so these funds are available to be used for this
project and will be reimbursed in the next fiscal year. Staff is recommending that City
Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with IDS Engineering Group
for the purpose of designing, engineering, and construction management of the Evers
Road Huebner Creek Bridge; and approve the reallocation of funds in the amount of
$80,000 from the existing Stormwater Capital Improvements line item.

Timothy E. Buscha, P.E. CFM, President of IDS was present for questions.

 Olen Yarnell asked about the funding of the project.
 Lynn Joseph asked about the bidding process.

A motion was made by Council Member Benny Martinez and seconded by Council
Member Monica Alcocer, to Authorize the City Manager to Enter into a Contract With
IDS Engineering Group for the Design, Engineering, and Construction Management for
the Reconstruction of the Evers Road Huebner Creek Bridge, and Approve Reallocation
of Existing Funds from Stormwater Capital Projects Upon a unanimous vote, Mayor Pro-
Tem announced the motion carried.

City Manager’s Report:
a) Approved Minutes from Boards, Commissions and Committees
b) Future Agenda Items:
 Sign Ordinance LED
 Hand Gun Policy
 Citizens Police Advisory Committee

c) Upcoming Important Events:
 Budget Workshops

o August 27th from 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. at the Leon Valley
Conference Center – Parliamentary Procedure & Open
Meetings Training for all directors, board liaisons, City Council
Members, Boards, Commissions and Committee Members.

o August 31st at 5:30 p.m. – First Tax Public Hearing

4



o September 6th at 7:00 p.m. – Second Tax Public Hearing
 August 30th from 5:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. at the Leon Valley Conference

Center – VIA Public Meeting regarding January service changes and
to inform citizens of the Primo route and the modification of this
route in Leon Valley.

Assistant City Manager/HR Director Crystal Caldera announced on behalf of City
Manager Kuenstler that 46 applications were received for the Assistant Finance Director
and interviews will begin this week. There were 47 applications received for the position
of Chief of Police. Council Member Martinez said that he would like to see a physical
agility test be conducted on the Chief of Police since it is required of all others. City
Manager Kuenstler stated that the supplement report as presented by Ms. Caldera was
accurate.

Mayor Pro-Tem Jordan announced the Upcoming Events.

Citizens to be heard.

There were no citizens to speak.

Announcements by the Mayor and Council Members.

Council Member Monica Alcocer expressed her desire to have more meetings like this.

Adjournment.

Mayor Riley announced the meeting adjourned at 7:26 p.m.

These minutes approved by the Leon Valley City Council on the 16th day of
August, 2016.

APPROVED

CHRIS RILEY
MAYOR

ATTEST:
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC

CITY SECRETARY

5



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C # 2016-08-16-02

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Saundra Passailaigue, City Secretary

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

SUBJECT: Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 16-018R re-
appointing members to the Zoning Commission and appointing members
to the Citizens Police Advisory Committee and the Hike & Bike Trail
Committee.

PURPOSE

This agenda item will allow the City Council to consider a resolution appointing members and
alternates to the City Council’s boards, committees, and commissions.

FISCAL IMPACT

None

S. E. E. IMPACT STATEMENT

Social Equity – The City will encourage collaborative participation by its residents, businesses
and stakeholders. The City’s citizens participate by serving on boards, committees, and
commissions. This encourages transparency, communication, and accountability.

Environmental – Not applicable

Economic Development – Not applicable

APPROVED: _____________________DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:
___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

ITEM 5

6



RESOLUTION No. 16-018R

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY CITY COUNCIL RE-APPOINTING MEMBERS TO
THE ZONING COMMISSION AND APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITIZENS POLICE
ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND THE HIKE & BIKE TRAIL COMMITTEE.

WHEREAS, The City of Leon Valley deemed it necessary to create boards, commissions and committees
composed of volunteers from the community to perform specific functions for the City.

WHEREAS, these boards, commissions and committees are invaluable to the City Council for their
expertise, insight, and dedication to the City of Leon Valley.

WHEREAS, the City Council of Leon Valley empowers these boards, commissions and committees to
make decisions affecting the citizens and the future of the City.

WHEREAS, the individuals currently filling the boards, commissions and committees have performed
admirably and honestly for the benefit of the City of Leon Valley and its citizens.

WHEREAS, the City Council formally appoints and sets the term for the following individual to their
respected board or commission:

ZONING COMMISSION:
Richard Blackmore, Greg Price, Hal Burnside, and Jacque Conrad.

CITIZENS POLICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE:
Richard Blackmore, Donna Charles, Lelani Mercado, Susan Hillje, Byron Woodworth, Amy Augustyniak,
Jesse Barrera, Marian Slaughter, Kim Crawford, Mark Guerra, Heather Riddle and Marianna Sanchez.

HIKE & BIKE TRAIL ADVISORY COMMITTEE:
Cynthia Koger, Darby Riley, Matthew Hodde, and Diana Frazier.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LEON VALLEY, TEXAS:

That the appointments of the aforementioned individuals to their respected board, commission or
committee and term for each individual become effective immediately.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley this the 16th day of
August, 2016.

A P P R O V E D

___________________________
CHRIS RILEY

MAYOR

Attest: ______________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC

City Secretary

7



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

M&C #2016-08-16-03

DATE: August 16, 2016

TO: Mayor and City Council

FROM: David Dimaline, Public Works Assistant Director

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

SUBJECT: Consider Approval of An Ordinance Conveying a Permanent Water Easement
to the San Antonio Water System (SAWS) for the construction of the Leon
Valley Emergency Interconnection Project

PURPOSE

This purpose of this ordinance is to approve granting a permanent water easement to SAWS
for the purpose of constructing the necessary facilities for an emergency interconnection
with SAWS.

BACKGROUND

The City of Leon Valley’s Municipal Water Well project includes the construction of a 6”
emergency water connection with SAWS. The emergency connection will replace the
existing interconnect located at the end of Huebner Rd. The new connection will consist of a
6” tap on an existing 30” SAWS water main that travels along Bandera Rd. The 6” water
main will run approximately 130’ and be brought inside the City’s Grass Hill Station directly
into the ground storage tank.

The City has entered into an Emergency Interconnect Agreement with SAWS to construct
the new 6” connection. During the plan review process for the project, SAWS has requested
an easement from the City. The proposed easement is 10’x33’ and is located inside the
Grass Hill station. Within this easement, a steel vault, valves, and 6” turbine meter will be
constructed. This will provide SAWS with access for meter reading, and any necessary
repairs.

FISCAL IMPACT

The SAWS Board of Trustees will pay the City of Leon Valley a sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00)
in consideration of the City dedicating the easement.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve this ordinance.  The construction of the emergency connection will help meet
water service demand in the event any future emergency occurs with our existing municipal
water wells.

ITEM 6

8



S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

Social Equity – A safe and continuous water supply benefits all citizens.

Environmental Stewardship – The project provides clean and reliable water for all its
citizens.

Economic Development – A superior rated water system and adequate water resources
encourages new businesses and business retention for the City.

APPROVED: _____________________ DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

9



10



11



ORDINANCE No. 16-028

APPROVING THE CONVEYANCE OF A PERMANENT WATER EASEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE
CITY OF SAN ANTONIO FOR THE USE, BENEFIT, AND CONTROL OF THE SAN ANTONIO
WATER SYSTEM (SAWS) BOARD OF TRUSTEES, AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, SAWS has requested the City of Leon Valley convey a Permanent Water Easement to the
City of San Antonio, a Texas Municipal Corporation,

WHEREAS, the City of Leon Valley entered into an Emergency Interconnect Agreement with SAWS to
install a new 6” interconnect and cut and cap the existing 6” interconnect, complying with all SAWS’s
specifications and regulations,

WHEREAS, the Permanent Water Easement is required for any and all things necessary for the
construction, reconstruction, realignment, inspection, patrol, maintenance, operation, repair, addition,
removal and/or replacement of the lines, facilities and appurtenances to be placed with the permanent
Easement Area  constructing the 6” Emergency Connection,

WHEREAS, the Grantee will pay the City of Leon Valley a sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, to Grantor in
hand paid by the SAWS Board of Trustees, Bexar County Texas; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City of Leon Valley to
execute and deliver to the Grantee the Permanent Water Easement attached hereto as Exhibit A.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley, Texas, that:

SECTION 1. The City Council hereby agrees to execute and deliver the Permanent Water Easement
Agreement with Grantee in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A,

SECTION 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its final passage.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley this the 16th day of
August, 2016.

A P P R O V E D

CHRIS RILEY
MAYOR

Attest: SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

Approved as to Form: DENISE FREDERICK
City Attorney

12



Project: Leon Valley Emergency Connection
Parcel: P-16-100

1

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS:  IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM
ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE
IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER.

PERMANENT EASEMENT – WATER

STATE OF TEXAS §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

COUNTY OF BEXAR §

THAT, The City of Leon Valley, a Municipality, hereinafter referred to as “Grantor”, whether
one or more, for and in consideration in the amount of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, to Grantor
in hand paid by the SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES, Bexar
County, Texas, has given, granted, sold, conveyed, and dedicated, and by these presents, does
give, grant, sell, convey, and dedicate unto the CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, a Texas Municipal
Corporation for the use, benefit and control of the said SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, herein referred to as “Grantee”, as such and their successors in office
appointed by the City Council of the said City of San Antonio as provided in Ordinance No.
75686, adopted at a regular meeting of said council, April 30, 1992, and subject to the terms and
provisions of said ordinance, an easement to construct, reconstruct, realign, inspect, patrol,
maintain, operate, repair, add, remove and replace water lines and facilities, and appurtenances
thereto, in, on, over and through the lands located in Bexar County, Texas as follows:

Being 0.0076 of an acre (330 sq.ft.) of land in Bexar County, Texas, being out of and part
of a 0.514 acre tract of land known as “The City of Leon Valley Elevated Water Tanks &
Water Well Site”, out of the Henry Kloppenberg Survey 193, Abstract 339, County Block
4429, situated in the City of Leon Valley, Bexar County, Texas, said 0.514 of an Acre
Tract recorded in Volume 7965, Page 622, of the Official Public Records, Bexar County,
Texas; and being more particularly described and depicted in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and made a part hereof (the “Easement Area”);

For the purpose of using said Easement Area for any and all things necessary for the
construction, reconstruction, realignment, inspection, patrol , maintenance, operation, repair,
addition, removal and/or replacement of the lines, facilities and appurtenances to be placed
within the above described permanent Easement Area.

13



Project: Leon Valley Emergency Connection
Parcel: P-16-100

2

Together with the right of ingress and egress over said Easement Area and over Grantor’s
adjoining lands for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, realigning, inspecting, patrolling,
maintaining, operating, repairing, adding and removing said lines, facilities and appurtenances;
the right to relocate said lines, facilities and appurtenances within said Easement Area; the right
to remove from said lands all trees and parts thereof, or other obstructions, which may interfere
with the exercise of the rights granted hereunder; and the right of exercise of all other rights
hereby granted; and Grantor expressly covenants and agrees for itself, its legal representatives,
successors and/or assigns, that no building or structure of any kind will be placed on said
Easement Area and that removal of any building or structure placed on said Easement Area shall
be at Grantor expense.

Grantor expressly acknowledges and agrees to perform the initial construction of the water
facilities and appurtenances thereto in connection with the LEON VALLEY EMERGENCY
CONNECTION PROJECT (the “Project”).  Grantor further acknowledges and agrees that until
such time as the water facilities are completed and accepted by Grantee, the Grantor, its
successors and assigns, shall be fully responsible for all obligations of Grantee hereunder, and
that Grantor, or behalf of itself, its heirs, legal representatives, successors and/or assigns, waive
any and all claims of any type or nature, known or unknown, that may be asserted against
Grantee arising from or related to events occurring or attributable to the period prior to the time
the Project is complete and Grantee has accepted the transfer of the water facilities and
appurtenances from the Grantor, and Grantor agrees that no such claims may be asserted against
Grantee.  Grantor does hereby agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Grantee from and
against any and all claims, losses, costs, expenses and fees (including, without limitation,
attorneys’ fees and costs of dispute resolution) arising from or in any way related to events
occurring or attributable to (i) the period prior to the time that the Project is complete and
Grantee has accepted the transfer of the water facilities and appurtenances from the Grantor,
and/or (II) the Grantor’s use of the e3asement hereunder or construction of the water facilities
and appurtenances permitted hereunder.  Grantor does hereby agree that the duties and
obligations in this paragraph shall be binding on its successors and assigns.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described easement and rights unto the said Grantee, its
successors and assigns, until the use of said easement shall be abandoned.

And Grantor dies hereby bind itself, its legal representatives, successors and/or assigns to
warrant and forever defend all and singular the above described easement and rights unto the
said Grantee, its successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or
to claim the same or any part thereof.
This Easement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

14



Project: Leon Valley Emergency Connection
Parcel: P-16-100

3

EXECUTED effective this ________________day of _______________, 2016.

City of Leon Valley
_____________________________

By:__________________________
[CORPORATE SEAL]

Attest________________________

Designated Representative:

Name: _______________________
Title: City Manager
Adress: 6400 El Verde
Leon Valley, Texas 78238

15



Consider Approval of an
Ordinance Conveying a

Permanent Water Easement
for

SAWS Interconnection

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

16



Purpose
• The purpose of this item is to consider approval

of an Ordinance granting a permanent water
easement to the San Antonio Water System
(SAWS)

• The Municipal Water Well Project includes the
construction of a SAWS interconnection at
Bandera Rd. and Grass Hill

• The CoLV entered into an Emergency
Interconnect Agreement with SAWS

17



Background

• As part of this project, the contractor will tap the
SAWS 30” main and construct a 6” water main
that will connect directly to the City’s Grass Hill
ground storage tank

• During the plan review process, SAWS has
requested an easement

• This easement area will house a vault with a 6”
turbine meter, valves, and provide access for
meter reading and any necessary repairs

18



Background

• The easement is located just inside the
Grass Hill Station (City Property)

• The size of the easement is 10’ x 33’ (330
sq. ft.)

19



Fiscal Impact
• N/A
• In consideration of the easement, the

SAWS Board of Trustees will pay the City
$10.00

20



Recommendation

• Recommend approval of the Ordinance
granting a permanent water easement to
SAWS for the construction of the
emergency water interconnection

21



S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

• Social Equity – A safe and continuous water
supply benefits all citizens.

• Environmental Stewardship – The project will
provide the opportunity for clean and reliable
water for the City of Leon Valley.

• Economic Development – A superior rated water
system and adequate water resources
encourages new businesses and business
retention for the City.

22



Consider Approval of an
Ordinance Conveying a

Permanent Water Easement
for

SAWS Interconnection

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

23



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C #2016-08-16-04

TO: Mayor and City Council

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

FROM: Melinda Moritz, Public Works Director

SUBJECT: Consideration and Possible Action on Hodges Street Traffic Mitigation Options.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this Communication is to consider possible traffic mitigation actions on Hodges Street.

The City received a petition from residents along Hodges Street to close one end of the street. The
petition was heard by City Council at their May 3, 2016 meeting and direction was given to staff to 1)
perform a traffic count of vehicles traveling from Evers to Bandera on Hodges, 2) install “Slow –
Children at Play” signage, 3) consider installing an LED speed indicator sign, 4) consult with the City
Engineer about making Hodges a one-way street, 5) perform a traffic study, 6) determine if the street
qualifies for a reduction in the 30 mile per hour speed limit to 25 miles per hour, and 7) encourage the
citizens to gather the necessary signatures to install speed humps.

Children At Play signage was installed and residents were encouraged to gather the necessary
signatures on the petition. The City Engineer was consulted about placing a barricade to make it a
one-way street, but he recommended that we not take any action without a proper traffic study being
conducted. A new traffic study was performed, which gives a list of recommendations and the impact
to the community to include a conversion to one-way, the installation of speed humps and prohibition
of through truck traffic, and a speed reduction to 20 MPH. Following are the options recommended by
the traffic engineers:

Option 1 – Conversion to one-way at specific times, with prohibition of through truck traffic and
enforcement
 Implementation time – 6 months
 Least negative impact to community
 Low cost
 Recommends an Origin-Destination survey be completed with Hodges residents to determine

potential left turn conflicts and delay during one-way operation times
 Need to amend traffic ordinance

Option 2 – Installation of speed humps and prohibition of through truck traffic
 Implementation time 6 months
 Medium negative impact to community
 Medium cost (installation & maintenance)
 Would require petition from residents
 Need to amend traffic ordinance

ITEM 7

24



Option 3 – Speed reduction to 20 mph and prohibition of through truck traffic
Implementation time less than 6 months
 Highest negative impact to community
 Low cost (signage & maintenance)
 Need to amend traffic ordinance

FISCAL IMPACT

 Traffic study previously approved was $11,894
 Speed humps cost $4500 per set, which would be taken from the FY 2017 budget
 Signage is approximately $70 per sign
 All items listed in Options can be funded from the proposed FY 2017 Public Works budget

Recommendation

 Hold public meeting to obtain input
 Obtain Origin-Destination input to assess potential left turn delay at Hodges Drive and Evers

Rd (if Option 1 is chosen)
 Present to City Council for final decision
 Begin implementation

S.E.E Statement

Social Equity – Providing the citizens with additional safety measures adds to the overall quality of
life.

Economic Development – Reducing perceived and potential dangers from traffic situations promotes
overall health, safety, and welfare image of City, which may attract businesses and new residents.

Environmental Stewardship – Reducing flow through traffic in this area will protect the existing small
stream by reducing the amount of pollutants entering the stream, which is then carried to creeks and
rivers, thereby improving water quality.

APPROVED: _____________________DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:
________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

Attachment:

Traffic study

25



26



 
i  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Project Overview ............................................................................................................... 1 
 Study Area ................................................................................................................ 1 1.1.1
 Study Approach ........................................................................................................ 1 1.1.2
 Report Overview ....................................................................................................... 4 1.1.3

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS ........................................................................................................ 5 

2.1 Existing Traffic Characteristics .......................................................................................... 5 
 Existing Signalized Intersections .............................................................................. 5 2.1.1
 Traffic Data Collection .............................................................................................. 5 2.1.2
 24-Hour Traffic Counts ............................................................................................. 5 2.1.3
 Heavy Vehicle Factor ............................................................................................... 8 2.1.4
 Speed Data .............................................................................................................. 8 2.1.5

2.2 Roadway and Access Inventory ........................................................................................ 9 
2.3 Current Corridor Conditions .............................................................................................. 9 

3.0 ALTERNATIVES ................................................................................................................... 11 

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ......................................................................................................... 14 

4.1 Option 1 ........................................................................................................................... 14 
4.2 Option 2 ........................................................................................................................... 15 
4.3 Option 3 ........................................................................................................................... 15 
4.4 Next Steps ....................................................................................................................... 16 

27



 
ii  

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Figure 1 – Leon Valley Undeveloped Land Map ........................................................................ 1 

Figure 2 – Study Area ................................................................................................................ 3 

Figure 3 – Automatic Traffic Recorder Locations ....................................................................... 7 

Figure 4 – 24-Hour ADT Data .................................................................................................... 8 

Figure 5 – 2009 Comprehensive Master Plan for 12N Hodges Area ....................................... 10 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1 – CoLV Traffic Data ...................................................................................................... 5 

Table 2 – Daily Traffic Volumes ................................................................................................. 6 

Table 2 – Heavy Truck Percentages .......................................................................................... 8 

 

LIST OF APPENDICIES 

APPENDIX A – AUTOMATIC TRAFFIC RECORDER DATA 

APPENDIX B – CITY OF LEON VALLEY TRAFFIC DATA 

28



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
1  

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Project Overview 

RJ RIVERA Associates, Inc. (RJRA) was contracted by the City of Leon Valley (CoLV) to 
prepare a traffic study to provide recommendations for traffic calming measures that 
would alleviate “cut-through” traffic on Hodges Drive as a result of Callaghan Road 
construction.  Within the limits of this project, Hodges Drive is currently configured as a 2-
lane undivided roadway.  This study evaluated 24-hour traffic counts, vehicle 
classification counts and speed data.  Evaluation of proposed improvements on cross 
streets or driveways will not be included in the analysis of Hodges Drive. 

 Study Area 1.1.1

Hodges Drive is located just southeast of IH “Loop” 410 in the CoLV (see Figure 2).  
Existing land uses surrounding the study area consists of approximately 30 lots and is 
primarily developed as R-1 (single-family residential) lots.  Not all lots are served by the 
Leon Valley sanitary sewer system and Hodges Dr. does not have any curbs, sidewalks, 
or streetlights.   

There are no recent land developments in the project study area, as it is mainly a 
residential area.  Vacant lots north of Hodges Dr. exist and are shown below in Figure 1. 

  
Source: City of Leon Valley, 2004. 

Figure 1 – Leon Valley Undeveloped Land Map 

 Study Approach 1.1.2

This study’s process complies with the requirements of the most recent version of the 
Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (TMUTCD), Transportation Research 
Board Highway Capacity Manual (HCM), AASHTO A Policy on Geometric Highway 
Design of Highways and Streets, ITE Traffic Engineering Handbook and other standards 

29



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
2  

 

of traffic engineering practice.  Applicable standards and specifications were obtained for 
use in this traffic study. 

The study entailed gathering relevant project information, data from published sources 
and data collected within the study area (see Section 2.0 in Appendix A). A traffic study 
of the study area was conducted to collect information such as posted speed limits, 
geometric configuration, intersection control devices, and existing traffic operations.

30



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
3  

 

 
Source: RJ RIVERA Associates, Inc., 2016. 

Figure 2 – Study Area 

31



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
4  

 

 Report Overview 1.1.3

This report delineates the activities and efforts undertaken as part of a traffic study to 
evaluate traffic calming measures that could serve as alternatives for alleviating “cut-
through” traffic within the study area. 

1. Understanding of project – project limits and existing land use (Section 1.1) 

2. Existing Traffic Conditions – understanding of traffic volumes and speeds 
(Section 2.0) 

3. Alternatives – (Section 3.0) 

4. Recommendations – (Section 4.0) 

 

32



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
5  

 

2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS 

The following sections define existing traffic characteristics, roadway and access inventory, 
and current corridor conditions along Hodges Dr.: 

2.1 Existing Traffic Characteristics  

 Existing Signalized Intersections 2.1.1

No existing signalized intersections were located within the study limits.  Non-signalized, 
stop sign controlled intersections are listed below: 

 Hodges Dr. at Bandera Rd. 

 Hodges Dr. at Evers Rd. 

 Traffic Data Collection 2.1.2

Traffic data was gathered from published sources and from field data collection. The first 
step of the data collection effort was to request and obtain any available traffic data pertinent 
to the study area.  This included: 
 

 Traffic Counts (Section 2.1.3) 

The remaining necessary data for analysis was collected in the field and included: data 
necessary for analysis that included a traffic survey of the area conducted to collect 
information pertaining to posted speed limits, geometric configuration, intersection control 
devices and existing traffic operations.  This data was used in the evaluation of alternatives 
for alleviating “cut-through” traffic through the study area. 

 24-Hour Traffic Counts 2.1.3

Traffic data was collected by CoLV during two different time periods for the Westbound and 
Eastbound traffic along Hodges Dr.  Eastbound data was collected for 11 days with a start 
date of April 11, 2016 and an end date of April 22, 2016 and Westbound traffic data was 
collected for 12 days with a start date of May 11, 2016 and an end date of May 23, 2016.  
See Table 1 below and Appendix B for data collected by CoLV.   

Traffic Volumes

 Westbound (12 Days: 5/11‐5/23) Eastbound (11 Days: 4/11‐4/22)

Hodges Drive  5727  1509 
Source: City of Leon Valley, 2016. 

Table 1 – CoLV Traffic Data 

In order to validate CoLV data, RJRA collected data from June 23-24, 2016.  The RJRA 
Data Collection Team placed automatic traffic recorders (ATR) and a Vehicle Classification 
Count (VCC) for vehicular traffic throughout the study area for a period of 24-hours. The 
ATR data was used to calculate the Average Daily Traffic (ADT) volumes and to verify the 
occurrence of the AM and PM peak ranges.  Appendix A shows a summary of the daily 
volume counts and locations.  See Table 2 below for daily traffic volumes and Figure 3 for 

33



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
6  

 

traffic count locations.  It is important to note that the data collected by the RJRA Data 
Collection Team was obtained during the summertime (no school). 

Daily Traffic Volumes 

Hodges Dr.  Westbound Eastbound  ADT 

500' East of Loop Bandera Rd.  356  135  491 
Source: RJ RIVERA Associates, Inc., 2016. 

Table 2 – Daily Traffic Volumes 

Hodges Dr. is classified as a Local Access street, which are typically associated with 
residential streets.  It is a roadway designed to provide direct access to individual homes, 
shops, abutting land and similar minor traffic destinations, with no provision for through 
traffic.  “Cut-through” traffic is currently using the roadway to gain access to other major 
arterials.  As shown above, the majority of traffic travels westbound towards Bandera Rd. 
with a peak hour between 5PM and 6PM. See Figure 4 for a chart of data collected. 

34



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
7  

 

 Source: RJ RIVERA Associates, Inc., 2016. 

Figure 3 – Automatic Traffic Recorder Locations 

35



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
8  

 

 Source: RJ RIVERA Associates, Inc., 2016. 

Figure 4 – 24-Hour ADT Data 

 Heavy Vehicle Factor 2.1.4

Classification counts were performed during the 24-hour ATR data collection process.  See 
Figure 3 for location.  Passenger vehicles and heavy truck traffic were counted separately 
at these locations.  A summary of truck percentages is provided in Table 2. 
 

Description  Truck % 

550’ East of Bandera Rd.  7% 

Source: RJ RIVERA Associates, Inc., 2016. 

Table 3 – Heavy Truck Percentages 

A heavy vehicle factor of 7% for a street classified as a local street is on the high end.  A 
street identified as a local street’s main purpose is to provide access to collector streets and 
minor/major arterials.  Access to local streets is largely accessed by residents living in the 
vicinity of the street and heavy truck traffic should be very minimal.  Currently construction in 
the area on Callaghan Rd. is causing vehicles to find new routes that are quicker, creating 
“cut-through” traffic along Hodges Dr. as a result.  

 Speed Data 2.1.5

The CoLV obtained traffic count data that included speed data and can be found in 
Appendix B.  This data can be used to determine if  humps or reduction in speed is 
necessary.   According to the data obtained by CoLV approximately 162 vehicles of the 
1,509 vehicles traveling in the eastbound direction and 679 of the 5,727 vehicles traveling in 
the westbound direction along Hodges Dr. were exceeding the posted speed limit of 30 
MPH. 

There are two methods from an engineering approach for setting speed limits according to 
Methods and Practices for Setting Speed Limits: An Informational Report from the FHWA 
Safety Program.  The first is the Operating Speed Method which entails a traffic study and 
determines the speed limit setting based on the 85th percentile speed.  It is important to note 
that setting speed limits lower than the 85th percentile speed does not necessarily 
encourage compliance within the posted speed limit.  The second method is the Road Risk 
Method, which determines the speed limit by the risks associated with the physical design of 
the road and the expected traffic conditions.  The methodology behind this method is to set 

36



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
9  

 

the speed based on the classification of the roadway and then adjust the speed limit based 
on the relative risk introduced by various road and roadside design features.  While detailed 
in the FHWA report this particular method is not utilized in the United States of America 
(USA) and is mainly utilized in New Zealand and Canada. 

2.2 Roadway and Access Inventory 

A complete functional design system provides a series of distinct travel movements: main, 
transition, distribution, collection, access, and termination. For example, the main movement 
of vehicles is generally uninterrupted, high-speed, longer-trip-length flow. When approaching 
destinations from the freeway, vehicles reduce speed on the ramps, which acts as a 
transition. Vehicles then enter a moderate-speed arterial, bringing them closer to their 
destination. Next, they enter collector roads into neighborhoods. Finally, the vehicle enters 
local access roads that provide direct connections to individual residences or other 
destinations. 

Each of the six stages is handled by a separate facility designed specifically for its function. 
Additionally, functional classifications are generally identified by surrounding land use forms 
and degrees of access. For example, urban and rural areas, have fundamentally different 
characteristics regarding land use types, density, street and highway network density, 
nature of travel patterns, and the collective relationship of each of these elements. 

2.3 Current Corridor Conditions 

Traffic calming according to the Institute of Transportation Engineering (ITE) “…is the 
combination of mainly physical measures that reduce the negative effects of motor vehicle 
use, alter driver behavior and improve conditions for non-motorized street users.”  Traffic 
calming’s main goal is to calm traffic.  It assists in areas plagued with “cut-through” traffic as 
a result of congestion (i.e. construction) on parallel streets.  Current construction on 
Callaghan Rd. has resulted in traffic “cutting-through” Hodges Dr. to access Bandera Rd. 
and Evers Rd.  Hodges Dr. is a two-lane facility approximately 22’ wide with no sidewalks or 
curbs.  Similar conditions have also been observed along Althea Dr. 
 
Hodges Dr. is in an area that interfaces the commercial corridor of Bandera Rd. and the 
Leon Valley South Corridor.  See Figure 5 below.  Goals for transportation, community 
service and environment have been established for the Hodges Dr. subdivision area within 
the CoLV 2009 Comprehensive Master Plan. 
 
The transportation goal must include consideration that Hodges Dr. is in close proximity to 
Evers and Bandera Roads and that it has the potential to induce undesirable cross traffic in 
the area.  This has become even more apparent due to the construction on Callaghan Rd.  
The CoLV understands that there is a potential for “cut-through” traffic and has determined 
that traffic calming measures should be considered and implemented throughout the 
neighborhood when possible in order to discourage undesirable traffic in the area. 
 

37



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
10  

 

   
Source: City of Leon Valley, 2009. 

Figure 5 – 2009 Comprehensive Master Plan for 12N Hodges Area 

38



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
11  

 

3.0 ALTERNATIVES 

Alternatives for immediate implementation to alleviate “cut-through” traffic along Hodges Dr. 
were identified and are presented below. A description of the available option is followed by 
its respective pro/con. 

Speed Hump 

A speed hump is a raised area in the roadway pavement surface extending transversely 
across the travel way. Speed hump dimensions vary. However, typical speed humps are 3 
inches high and 14 feet long, extending to either the curb or the edge of the parking area. 
The speed hump would be marked with the bold white “v” markings and would have an 
appropriate sign preceding the hump to warn drivers that they are approaching the measure. 

The benefits of a speed hump include the effective reduction of speed, relatively low cost, 
and minimal impact to roadway operations. However, speed humps are generally unpopular 
with users of the street.  Noise can be a problem on high traffic volume streets, emergency 
response times can increase and traffic could be diverted to other neighboring streets. 
Lastly, it could result in increased speeds between humps. 

The CoLV currently has a speed hump policy that has certain criteria that must be satisfied 
in order to be considered eligible for speed hump installation.  Current corridor conditions do 
not meet the operational characteristics required for Hodges Dr. to be considered for speed 
hump installation, but due to the large support of the local community the possibility to still 
be considered exists.  A petition that documents a minimum of ninety percent of the 
residential dwellings on the street supporting the installation of speed humps will allow local 
residents and Hodges Dr. eligible and meeting criteria to be considered for speed hump 
installation.   

It is also important to note the need for continued observation and evaluation of wear and 
maintenance requirements for speed humps and the pavement sections on which they are 
installed on.  

Speed Display 

Radar speed display signs post the speed of oncoming vehicles using highly visible LEDs to 
make motorists aware when they are driving at unsafe speeds. Radar speed signs have 
been proven to slow traffic down and are ideal for use on local roads or in school zones. 

Speed displays can be pole mounted at a fixed location or their location can vary through 
the use of trailer-mounted displays. Display signs can be powered via power grid or 
independently by solar panel and a backup battery. 

Newer units provide traffic counting capability with built in data collectors and internal 
memory that save data on passing vehicles to increase feedback on the roadway usage and 
vehicle speed. 

The benefits of a speed display include the relatively inexpensive cost to install and 
maintain, they are mobile and can cover a wide range of area if needed and can be used as 
part of a pilot program for the consideration of a permanent vehicle activated sign. However, 

39



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
12  

 

these devices may require routine battery replacement/maintenance, are limited to size, 
weight, power and visibility and need to be mounted/calibrated by qualified personnel. 

Street Closure 

Two types of street closures can aid in traffic calming and access management: full closures 
and partial closures. As a traffic calming measure, partial closures that prohibit traffic in one 
direction only can help eliminate “cut-through” traffic while maintaining local use for 
residents. Full closures are particularly helpful as an access management strategy because 
they help to eliminate access points. Unlike raised medians which reduce conflict points, 
street closures can eliminate access points to major and minor arterials from local streets 
forcing drivers to use collectors for access to arterials. Other partial street closures force 
traffic to turn right or left. This type of partial closure can help reduce conflict points without 
completely eliminating access. Entrance barriers and diagonal diverters are examples of 
partial closures. 

The benefits of a street closure include: effectively minimize “cut-through” traffic on local 
streets, can significantly reduce or eliminate conflict points, and can improve sub-area 
circulation while maintaining free flow of traffic on arterials. However, street closures limit 
and change access to neighborhoods, increase traffic volumes on adjacent or parallel 
streets, are unpopular with businesses, and can increase travel times for residents who 
need to take an alternate route as a result of the street closure.  It is also important to note 
that garbage/recycling services would be affected by this street closure.  Maneuvering a 
large vehicle would be difficult at the ends of the street where a closure would be located. 

Changing Hodges Dr. to a One-Way Street 

One-way streets eliminate traffic traveling in a given direction. This strategy calls for the 
conversion of short segments of street to one-way operations. The purpose of this is to 
dissuade “cut-through” traffic from turning onto the subject street while maintaining local 
access for businesses and residents. This strategy does not call for the use of one-way 
couplets as these can actually increase traffic speeds through an area. One example of this 
type of strategy is an entrance barrier which converts a street to one-way operations at an 
intersection preventing “cut-through” traffic from turning onto the street. This strategy can 
also be applied mid-block to prevent turning traffic access to the local road. 

According to CoLV, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, Article 12.02 
Operation of Vehicles – Division 6 for One-Way Streets in this division, vehicular traffic shall 
move only in the direction indicated where signs indicating the direction of traffic are erected 
and maintained at such intersections. 

Two benefits from this option include keeping traffic volumes low and the reduction of “cut-
through” traffic. However, such conversions may be met with some opposition from adjacent 
property owners.  Also, there is some precedence to a potential increase of head-on 
crashes. 

Another option would be to propose Hodges Dr. be designated as a one-way street during 
specified times (i.e. peak hours).  CoLV could implement an ordinance that would designate 
the hours and use police enforcement to effectively implement the ordinance. 

40



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
13  

 

Reduce Speed Limit/Posted Signs 

These include regulatory signs posted along neighborhood streets such as “Speed Limit” 
and “No Through Truck Traffic” signs. These can work to reduce speeds or prohibit 
undesired commercial or other heavy truck traffic along neighborhood streets. Other signs 
such as “Radar Enforced” signs can serve to increase a sense of law enforcement presence 
in the area effectively reducing traffic speeds. “Traffic Calming” neighborhood signs can 
work to make drivers aware that they are in a neighborhood in which traffic calming 
strategies are enforced. 

Average speed data was collected by CoLV and it was determined that the average speed 
was below the speed limit for this facility.  Reduction of the speed limit would require the 
average speed of a vehicle to be in excess of the posted speed limit.   

Benefits of using posted signs/reduction of speed include: low cost solution, offers a short-
term improvement, has a low impact to surroundings, and does not hinder emergency 
access. However, they are only effective in the immediate area, and require enforcement in 
conjunction with signage. 

Police Control/Enforcement 

This involves utilization of law enforcement agencies, personnel and equipment for the 
direct enforcement of vehicular safety laws and regulations including conformance to 
regulatory signs such as posted speed limits and control signs. This strategy is most 
successfully implemented through the regular rotation of both manned and unmanned 
enforcement vehicles at key locations and relies on instilling a sense of presence within the 
community. As such, this is best achieved by maintaining high visibility within the area as 
opposed to utilizing a stealth approach.  

This option is very quick to implement, and provides a simple approach to the problem while 
allowing the monitoring of speeds on a roadway. However, the effectiveness is short lived 
and specific to the area of enforcement. 

 

41



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
14  

 

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

Alternatives assessed considered the estimated time for implementation, negative impacts 
to the residential community, and anticipated costs. Alternatives were then grouped to 
provide the top three options. All three options, ranked (from 1 being highest) and presented 
below, would enhance the safety along Hodges Dr. however it is recommended that they be 
implemented independent of one another (i.e. not together).  

4.1 Option 1: Conversion to One-way Street at Specified Times with 
Prohibition of Through-Truck Traffic and Enforcement  

This option recommends the conversion of Hodges Dr. to one-way operation during the 
specified hours of 7AM to 9AM (optional) and 4PM to 6PM. One-way operation would follow 
eastbound to Evers Rd. (to oppose the predominant, existing westbound use). The option 
also includes the Prohibition of Through-Truck Traffic to limit heavy-truck traffic to only those 
with destinations or stops along Hodges Dr. This option would be enhanced with CoLV Law 
Enforcement. 

 Implementation Time: less than 6 months 

 Negative Impacts to Community: Least 

 Cost: Low 

Prior to implementation, it is recommended that an Origin-Destination survey be completed 
with Hodges Dr. residents to determine potential left-turn conflicts and delay at Evers Road 
during the one-way operation at the specified times. 

Affected Code 1: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, 
Article 12.02 Operation of Vehicles – Division 6. One-Way Streets 

 Append with: One-way Streets at Specified Times 

 The following streets are hereby designated as one-way streets at the following 
specified times: 

Name of Street Direction Hours Location 

Hodges Dr. Easterly 
Between 4PM and 6PM 

Between 7AM and 9AM (optional)

Between Bandera Rd. and 
Evers Rd. 

Affected Code 2: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, 
Article 12.04 Truck Traffic – Division 2. Through Truck Traffic  

 Amendment: Section 12.04.032 - Through truck traffic prohibited on certain 
streets 

42



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
15  

 

 Inclusion of Hodges Dr. 

Code 3: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles 

 Section 12 (multiple) - Enforcement; penalty 

 Violations of any of the provisions of this division shall constitute an offense 
punishable by a fine. 

4.2 Option 2: Installation of Speed Humps and Prohibition of Through-Truck 
Traffic 

The effectiveness of this traffic calming measure would be increased through installation of 
a series of two or more speed humps along Hodges Dr. This installation would require 
continued observation and evaluation of wear and maintenance requirements for speed 
humps and of the pavement sections on which they are installed on.  

 Implementation Time: less than 6 months 

 Negative Impacts to Community: Medium 

 Cost: Med (installation and maintenance) 

Installation would require petition following the CoLV speed hump ordinance. 

Affected Code 1: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, 
Article 12.04 Truck Traffic – Division 2. Through Truck Traffic  

 Amendment: Section 12.04.032 - Through truck traffic prohibited on certain 
streets 

 Inclusion of Hodges Dr. 

4.3 Option 3: Speed Reduction to 20-MPH with Prohibition of Through-Truck 
Traffic and Enforcement  

Speed reduction (with law enforcement) would likely serve as the greatest deterrence to 
“cut-through” traffic thus enhancing safety; however, it would have the most negative 
impacts to the mobility of the surrounding residential community.  

 Implementation Time: less than 6 months 

 Negative Impacts to Community: Highest 

 Cost: Low 

Affected Code 1: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, 
Article 12.02 Operation of Vehicles – Division 7. Speed Limits  

 Amendment: Section 12.02.203 - Speed limits on specific streets 

43



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
16  

 

 Reduce Hodges Dr. to twenty (20) miles per hour. 

Affected Code 2: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles, 
Article 12.04 Truck Traffic – Division 2. Through Truck Traffic  

 Amendment: Section 12.04.032 - Through truck traffic prohibited on certain 
streets 

 Inclusion of Hodges Dr. 

Code 3: City of Leon Valley, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12, Traffic and Vehicles 

 Section 12 (multiple) - Enforcement; penalty 

 Violations of any of the provisions of this division shall constitute an offense 
punishable by a fine. 

4.4 Next Steps 

The following provides a brief overview of the anticipated next steps prior to implementation. 

 Present findings to City Council 

 Hold public meeting and obtain input 

 Obtain Origin-Destination input to assess potential left turn delay at Hodges Dr. / 
Evers Rd. intersection (for Option 1 only) 

 Present to City Council for decision 

 City of Leon Valley to begin adoption / amendment process (legal) 

 Begin implementation 

44



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
A  

 

APPENDIX A – AUTOMATIC TRAFFIC RECORDER DATA    

45



Section : Hodges Dr. Date : 6/23/2016 Site : 0

Weather : Sunny Day : Thursday Location : 500' East of Bandera Rd.

City, State : San Antonio, TX

WB EB Total WB EB Total
12:00 AM 1 2 12:00 PM 3 1
12:15 AM 1 1 12:15 PM 5 2
12:30 AM 0 0 12:30 PM 6 1
12:45 AM 1 1 12:45 PM 3 1
1:00 AM 1 0 1:00 PM 6 2
1:15 AM 0 0 1:15 PM 6 5 █
1:30 AM 0 0 1:30 PM 6 2 █
1:45 AM 2 0 1:45 PM 2 3 █
2:00 AM 0 0 2:00 PM 11 5 █
2:15 AM 0 0 2:15 PM 2 1 15
2:30 AM 0 0 2:30 PM 4 1
2:45 AM 0 0 2:45 PM 3 2
3:00 AM 0 0 3:00 PM 8 2
3:15 AM 0 0 3:15 PM 6 0
3:30 AM 0 0 3:30 PM 3 1
3:45 AM 0 0 3:45 PM 2 2
4:00 AM 0 0 4:00 PM 5 4
4:15 AM 0 0 4:15 PM 3 3
4:30 AM 0 0 4:30 PM 11 2
4:45 AM 1 0 4:45 PM 6 2
5:00 AM 0 0 5:00 PM 13 2 █ █
5:15 AM 2 1 5:15 PM 24 5 █ █
5:30 AM 3 0 5:30 PM 20 3 █ █
5:45 AM 1 0 5:45 PM 12 2 █ █
6:00 AM 2 0 6:00 PM 6 4 69 81
6:15 AM 0 1 6:15 PM 9 2
6:30 AM 3 0 6:30 PM 6 6
6:45 AM 5 0 6:45 PM 0 2
7:00 AM 4 3 7:00 PM 1 2
7:15 AM 6 2 7:15 PM 4 2
7:30 AM 4 2 7:30 PM 5 2
7:45 AM 2 4 7:45 PM 5 2
8:00 AM 6 0 8:00 PM 5 3
8:15 AM 4 0 8:15 PM 6 3
8:30 AM 1 2 8:30 PM 3 0
8:45 AM 2 1 8:45 PM 3 0
9:00 AM 8 0 9:00 PM 2 4
9:15 AM 14 3 9:15 PM 6 2
9:30 AM 5 1 9:30 PM 3 2
9:45 AM 3 1 9:45 PM 2 2
10:00 AM 2 2 10:00 PM 1 1
10:15 AM 4 0 10:15 PM 0 0
10:30 AM 4 1 10:30 PM 0 0
10:45 AM 3 3 10:45 PM 1 0
11:00 AM 5 2 11:00 PM 3 0
11:15 AM 5 1 11:15 PM 1 0
11:30 AM 6 4 11:30 PM 0 0
11:45 AM 2 4 11:45 PM 1 0

Daily Directional ADT
Daily Total ADT

1

0

Traffic Volume
Start Time

Peak Hour Volume

17

13

2

5

17

20

20

Peak Hour Volume

 - 24-Hour Traffic Volume

356

Westbound Eastbound

6

10

14

8

3

5

6

11

4

0

0

491
135

Start Time
Westbound Eastbound

Traffic Volume Traffic Volume Traffic Volume

5

12

9

5

11

12

1

11

0

0

1

21

15

19

25

69

18

3

3

0

0

1

6

10

16

13

30

13

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

12:00
AM

1:00
AM

2:00
AM

3:00
AM

4:00
AM

5:00
AM

6:00
AM

7:00
AM

8:00
AM

9:00
AM

10:00
AM

11:00
AM

12:00
PM

1:00
PM

2:00
PM

3:00
PM

4:00
PM

5:00
PM

6:00
PM

7:00
PM

8:00
PM

9:00
PM

10:00
PM

11:00
PM

V
eh

ic
le

s 
/ H

o
u

r

Time

Westbound Eastbound

Total

RJ RIVERA
Associates inc 

Engineers          Planners          Public Involvement 

RJ RIVERA
Associates inc 

Engineers          Planners          Public Involvement 

46



Combined
File Name: Hodges Dr. Axle Classification
Start Date: 6/23/2016
Start Time: 9:00:00 AM

Number Date Time Total Bikes
Cars & 
Trailers

2 Axle 
Long Buses

2 Axle 6 
Tire

3 Axle 
Single

4 Axle 
Single

<5 Axl 
Double

5 Axle 
Double

>6 Axl 
Double

<6 Axl 
Multi

6 Axle 
Multi

>6 Axl 
Multi

Not 
Classed

1 6/23/2016 09:00 AM 33 1 18 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
2 6/23/2016 10:00 AM 19 0 14 4 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 6/23/2016 11:00 AM 29 0 16 5 0 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
4 6/23/2016 12:00 PM 22 0 13 8 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 6/23/2016 01:00 PM 32 0 20 9 0 2 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
6 6/23/2016 02:00 PM 30 1 19 8 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
7 6/23/2016 03:00 PM 24 0 18 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 6/23/2016 04:00 PM 36 0 23 7 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9 6/23/2016 05:00 PM 81 0 64 13 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

10 6/23/2016 06:00 PM 35 0 27 5 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
11 6/23/2016 07:00 PM 23 0 15 6 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12 6/23/2016 08:00 PM 23 0 20 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
13 6/23/2016 09:00 PM 24 2 18 3 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
14 6/23/2016 10:00 PM 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
15 6/23/2016 11:00 PM 5 0 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
16 6/24/2016 12:00 AM 7 0 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
17 6/24/2016 01:00 AM 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
18 6/24/2016 02:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
19 6/24/2016 03:00 AM 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
20 6/24/2016 04:00 AM 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
21 6/24/2016 05:00 AM 7 0 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
22 6/24/2016 06:00 AM 11 0 4 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
23 6/24/2016 07:00 AM 28 1 19 5 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
24 6/24/2016 08:00 AM 17 1 11 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
25 6/24/2016 09:00 AM 15 0 9 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Total 508 6 348 102 0 32 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 16
% 1.18% 68.50% 20.08% 0.00% 6.30% 0.20% 0.00% 0.59% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 3.15%

47



Hodges Drive Traffic Study Technical Memorandum City of Leon Valley 

 

 
B  

 

 APPENDIX B – CITY OF LEON VALLEY TRAFFIC DATA    

48



Consideration and Possible 
Action on Hodges Street
Traffic Mitigation Options

City Council Meeting
June 21, 2016

1

49



Purpose

• To consider possible traffic mitigation 
actions on Hodges Street

• With Attached Ordinance Authorizing 
a Budget Adjustment for Traffic 
Engineering Study

2

50



Situs

3

Evers

Bandera

Hodges

Pat Neff Middle School

Callaghan

51



Purpose

• City received a petition from residents along Hodges Street to 
close one end of the street, which was heard by City Council 
May 3, 2016 

• Direction was given to staff to:
– 1) perform a traffic count of vehicles traveling from Evers to Bandera 

on Hodges, 
– 2) install “Slow – Children at Play” signage, 
– 3) consider installing an LED speed indicator sign, 
– 4) consult with the City Engineer about making Hodges a one‐way 

street, 
– 5) perform a traffic study to determine if the street qualifies for a 

reduction in the 30 mile per hour speed limit to 25 miles per hour, and 
– 6) encourage the citizens to gather the necessary signatures to install 

speed humps.

4

52



Purpose

• A new traffic count was conducted and the following statistics 
apply:

• Direction Eastbound Westbound

• No. days deployed 11 days 12 days

• Vehicles per Day 137 477.25

• Average speed 23 mph 24 mph

• 50th percentile speed 24 mph 25 mph

• 85th percentile speed 29 mph 30 mph

• No. above speed limit 162 679
– The street meets the daily vehicle requirements for speed hump 

installation

5

53



SR Hodges #2 Traffic Counts

6

Hodges Drive ‐ Eastbound

54



SR Hodges #2 Traffic Counts

7

55



Hodges Street View

8

56



Fiscal Impact

• Public Works will be installing the Children at 
Play signage, but a budget adjustment in the 
amount of $12,000 will be needed in order to 
perform a traffic study

– The study would consider the one‐way option, 
reducing the speed limit to 25 mph, and other 
traffic calming measures

• Speed humps cost $4500 per set, which would 
be taken from the FY 2017 budget

9

57



Recommendation

• Ask the petitioners to provide the required 
90% property owner signatures as per the 
Speed Hump Policy
– Public Works will install speed humps after 

October 1, 2016

• Approve an ordinance for a budget 
adjustment to fund a traffic study

10

58



S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

• Social Equity – Providing the citizens with additional 
safety measures adds to the overall quality of life.

• Economic Development – Reducing perceived and 
potential dangers from traffic situations promotes 
overall health, safety, and welfare image of City, 
which may attract businesses and new residents.

• Environmental Stewardship – Reducing flow through 
traffic in this area will protect the existing small 
stream by reducing the amount of pollutants 
entering the stream, which is then carried to creeks 
and rivers, thereby improving water quality.

11

59



Consideration and Possible 
Action on Hodges Street
Traffic Mitigation Options

City Council Meeting
June 21, 2016

12

60



Consideration and Possible
Action on Hodges Street
Traffic Mitigation Options

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

61



Purpose

• To consider and possibly take action
on recommendations for Hodges
Street traffic calming measures

62



Situs

Evers

Bandera

Hodges

Pat Neff Middle School

Callaghan

63



Purpose
• City received a petition from residents along Hodges Street to

close one end of the street, which was heard by City Council
May 3, 2016

• Direction was given to staff to:
– 1) perform a traffic count of vehicles traveling from Evers to Bandera

on Hodges,
– 2) install “Slow – Children at Play” signage,
– 3) consider installing an LED speed indicator sign,
– 4) consult with the City Engineer about making Hodges a one-way

street,
– 5) perform a traffic study
– 6) determine if the street qualifies for a reduction in the 30 mile per

hour speed limit to 25 miles per hour, and
– 7) encourage the citizens to gather the necessary signatures to install

speed humps.

64



Purpose

• Children At Play signage was ordered and installed
• Residents were encouraged to gather the necessary

signatures on the petition
• A new traffic study was performed, which gives a list of

recommendations and the impact to the community to
include:
– Conversion to one-way
– Installation of speed humps and prohibition of through truck traffic
– Speed reduction to 20 MPH

65



Recommendations

• Option 1 – Conversion to one-way at specific
times, with prohibition of through truck traffic
and enforcement
– Implementation time – 6 months
– Least negative impact to community
– Low cost
– Recommends an Origin-Destination survey be

completed with Hodges residents to determine
potential left turn conflicts and delay during one-way
operation times

– Need to amend traffic ordinance

66



Recommendations

• Option 2 – Installation of speed humps and
prohibition of through truck traffic
– Implementation time 6 months
– Medium negative impact to community
– Medium cost (installation & maintenance)
– Would require petition from residents
– Need to amend traffic ordinance

67



Recommendations

• Option 3 – Speed reduction to 20 mph and
prohibition of through truck traffic
– Implementation time less than 6 months
– Highest negative impact to community
– Low cost (signage & maintenance)
– Need to amend traffic ordinance

68



Hodges Street View

69



Fiscal Impact

• Traffic study previously approved was $11,894
• Speed humps cost $4500 per set
• Signage is approximately $70 per sign
• All items listed in Options can be funded from

the proposed FY 2017 Public Works budget

70



Next steps

• Hold public meeting to obtain input
• Obtain Origin-Destination input to assess

potential left turn delay at Hodges Drive
and Evers Rd (if Option 1 is chosen)

• Present to City Council for final decision
• Begin implementation

71



S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

• Social Equity – Providing the citizens with additional
safety measures adds to the overall quality of life.

• Economic Development – Reducing perceived and
potential dangers from traffic situations promotes
overall health, safety, and welfare image of City,
which may attract businesses and new residents.

• Environmental Stewardship – Reducing cut through
traffic in this area will protect the existing small
stream by reducing the amount of pollutants
entering the stream, which is then carried to creeks
and rivers, thereby improving water quality.

72



Consideration and Possible
Action on Hodges Street
Traffic Mitigation Options

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

73



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C # 2016-08-16-05

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Patricia Manea, Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion and Approval of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017
Budget for the City of Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation
(LVEDC)

PURPOSE

For the presentation, discussion and approval of the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget as
recommended and approved by the LVEDC Board of Directors at their meeting of July 27,
2016.  The presentation of the proposed LVEDC budget will be made by Larry Proffitt, LVEDC
Board Secretary.

The LVEDC Board would like for City Council to consider approving the Fiscal Year 2016-2017
budget so that the LVEDC can have an Executive Director, continue services with the Retail
Coach, have EDsuite assist with the development of the LVED’s website, have Proposal Suite
develop a data base of current land, building and lease availability within the City of Leon
Valley. Approving the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 budget will also contribute to the City Attorney’s
services as well as funding for LVEDC projects and grants.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social Equity – meets the needs of citizens by assessing the needs, partnerships and
implementing a plan to provide an improved quality of life.

Environmental Stewardship – working within the master plan to meet the goals of being a
environmental conscientious city.

Economic Development – focus on communication between the city and involved community
groups that will enhance or promote new business but also retain existing business to grow
the business infrastructure of the city.

ITEM 8

74



FISCAL IMPACT

The Board agreed that Professional Services invoices would not be paid until the Board
reviews invoices and receives satisfactory responses from vendors regarding questioned
expenses.

The total amount of the proposed LVEDC FY 2016-2017 is $414,000.

RECOMMENDATION

The LVEDC Board recommends approval for proposed FY 2016-2017 budget in the amount of
$414,000.

APPROVED: _____________________ DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:
_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

75



RESOLUTION No. 16-019R

APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LVEDC) BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017
TO SUPPORT THE LVEDC’S OPERATIONS, PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS.

WHEREAS, the Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 501.051 et. seq., authorized
the City of Leon Valley to create a non-profit entity known as an Economic Development
Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the City of Leon Valley created the City of Leon Valley Economic
Development Corporation in 2009 by filing Articles of Incorporation, as amended
thereafter, to receive economic development funds and to prepare a plan and budget for
the effective and efficient expenditure thereof in furtherance of the purposes of the
Corporation; and

WHEREAS, the citizens of the City of Leon Valley, Texas approved the implementation
of a sales tax to fund economic development in the City through the City of Leon Valley
Economic Development Corporation; and

WHEREAS, Texas law authorizes the City Council to approve all programs and
expenditures of the City of Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation by
approving the annual budget; and

WHEREAS, the City of Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation approved the
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget on July 27, 2016, and now submits the Budget to the
City Council for approval; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council to approve and adopt the City of Leon
Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC) Budget for the Fiscal Year 2016-
2017 to support the LVEDC’s operations, programs and projects;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
LEON VALLEY, TEXAS:

Section 1. The City of Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation
Budget for Fiscal Year 2016-2017, attached as Exhibit “A”, is hereby approved.

76



Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage by four
(4) or more affirmative votes of the entire City Council; otherwise, said effective date
shall be ten (10) days from the date of passage hereof.

PASSED and APPROVED this 16th day of August 2016.

APPROVED

________________________________
Chris Riley

Mayor
Attest: _____________________________

Saundra Passailaigue, TRMC
City Secretary

Approved as to form:

_________________________
DENISE FREDERICK
City Attorney

77



Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget/Spending

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12-month
Oct'16 Nov'16 Dec'16 Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17 Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17 Jul'17 Aug'17 Sep'17 Total

SUPPLIES
5100-520.01 Office Supplies 70 55 45 70 70 70 70 70 45 45 45 45 700
5100-520.02 Operating Supplies 35 25 15 35 25 15 35 25 15 35 25 15 300
5100-520.04 Misc. Supplies and Postage 170 100 30 170 170 170 170 170 80 80 80 110 1,500

Subtotal Supplies 275 180 90 275 265 255 275 265 140 160 150 170 2,500

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
5100-530.01 Professional Services
        Miscellaneous Professional Services 2,000 3,000 1,000 1,000 2,500 1,000 1,000 2,500 1,000 1,000 16,000
5100-530.02 Contractual Services
        City Attorney 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
        City of Leon Valley (LVEDC Admin. 40 hr.) 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 48,000
        Exec Dir (30-hr. 1099 thru 3rd Party) 4,500 3,600 3,600 4,500 3,600 3,600 4,500 3,600 3,600 4,500 3,600 3,600 46,800
        Executive Director (Bonus at NTE 15%) 3,240 3,240 6,480
5100-530.03 Telephone LVACC
5100-530.04 Utilities - Gas, Water, Electricity LVACC
5100-530.05 Printing 200 120 50 160 160 160 160 160 70 70 70 120 1,500
5100-530.06 Advertising 109 218 545 2,182 982 436 1,909 1,091 909 727 0 0 9,109
5100-530.08 Equipment Rental  (LVACC Lease) 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 9,000
5100-530.09 Travel (Includes Workshop Fees)
     Registrations:
          TEDC (Sales Tax Training) 875 875
          TEDC (Basic EDC Course) 700 700
          TEDC (2016 Annual Texas Conf in SATX) 500 500
          ICSC (Texas Conference in Dallas) 1,475 1,475
          ICSC (National Conf in Las Vegas) 1,220$ 1,220
          Retail Live! (Austin) 295 295
          TML Investment Trng. 275 180 455
     Travel:
          TEDC (Sales Tax Training) 1,710 1,710
          TEDC (Basic EDC Course) 405 405

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
2016-2017 12-Month Budget

LVEDC_2016-17_6th Draft
Page1 of 2

LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget-DRAFT No. 6
8/3/2016 @ 8:05 AM

78

afederico
EXHIBIT "A"



Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget/Spending

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 12-month
Oct'16 Nov'16 Dec'16 Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17 Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17 Jul'17 Aug'17 Sep'17 Total

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
2016-2017 12-Month Budget

          ICSC (Texas Conference in Dallas) 2,603 2,603
          ICSC (National Conf in Las Vegas) 1,642 1,642
          Retail Live! (Austin) 244 244
5100-530.10  Membership
        TEDC (1 yr.) 1,250 750 125 2,125
         ICSC (1 yr.) 250 250
         IEDC (1 yr.) 385 385
5100-530.15 EDC Project Funding (New) 22,800 11,400 5,700 28,500 19,000 19,000 19,000 19,000 11,400 11,400 11,400 11,400 190,000
5100-530.XX Miscellaneous
        4th of July Sponsorship 10,078 10,078
        Marketing Support 2,100 1,050 525 2,625 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 4,200 17,500
        Proposal Suite 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 1,188
        EdSuite Website 600 600
        Other Miscellaneous Expenses 26,685 1,676 28,361

Subtotal Contractual Services 64,873 24,788 20,544 47,566 32,341 32,520 38,530 42,528 27,028 25,046 25,698 30,037 411,500

Total Supplies and Contractual Services 65,148 24,968 20,634 47,841 32,606 32,775 38,805 42,793 27,168 25,206 25,848 30,207 414,000

LVEDC_2016-17_6th Draft
Page2 of 2

LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget-DRAFT No. 6
8/3/2016 @ 8:05 AM

79



Planned Expenses Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Total
Registration
TEDC (Sales Tax Training) $875 < Austin, TX $875
TEDC (Basic EDC Course) $700 < Frisco, TX $700
TEDC (2016 Annual Texas Conf) San Antonio > $500 $500
ICSC (Texas Conference) Dallas, TX > $1,475 $1,475
ICSC (Las Vegas) $1,220 < Las Vegas, NV $1,220
Retail Live! (Austin) $295 < Austin, TX $295

TML (Public Funds Investment
 Act Training-ONLINE) $275  < On-Line $180  < San Antonio $455

Registration Subtotal $975 $875 $180 $0 $0 $0 $1,220 $0 $0 $0 $295 $1,975 $5,520

Travel
TEDC (Sales Tax Training) $1,710  < Austin, TX $1,710
TEDC (Basic EDC Course) 405 < Frisco, TX $405
ICSC (Texas Conference) Dallas, TX > $2,603 $2,603
ICSC (Las Vegas) 1,642$ < Las Vegas, NV $1,642
Retail Live! (Austin) 244$ < Austin, TX $244

Travel Subtotal $405 $0 $1,710 $0 $0 $0 $1,642 $0 $0 $0 $244 $2,603 $6,604
Membership Subtotal
TEDC (1 Year) $1,250 $750 $125 $2,125
ICSC (1 Year) $250 $250
IEDC (1 Year) $385 $385

Membership Subtotal $1,250 $0 $385 $750 $0 $125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250 $2,760
Totals

Monthly Planned Expenses $2,630 $875 $2,275 $750 $0 $125 $2,862 $0 $0 $0 $539 $4,828 $14,884
Total Planned Expenses $2,630 $3,505 $5,779 $6,529 $6,529 $6,654 $9,516 $9,516 $9,516 $9,516 $10,055 $14,884

Notes:
1)  New and Renewal Membership payments are arranged in such a way that Board Directors/Staff can attend training and conferences with a "membership" fee.
2)  International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC) happens every year around Oct-Nov.  Payment is required at least one month before conference.
3)  FY 2015-2016's budget will be used to pay for ICSC conference in FY 2016-17.  FY 2016-2017's budget will pay for the FY 2017-2018 conference and so on.
4)  Memberships must be renewed yearly.
5)  Sales Tax Training is good for 2 years.
6)  Public Funds Investment Act training is good for 2 years.
7)  Basic Economic Development Course is optional .
8)  TEDC Membership renewal of $500 for Ms. Federico will be paid by COLV.

LVEDC FY 2016-17 Budget Lines
Travel & Membership Expense Estimates

Planned Expenses
Page 1 of 1

LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget-DRAFT No. 6
8/3/2016 @ 8:05 AM

80



LVEDC Budget FY 2016-2017

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

81



Differences in 2016-17
• LVEDC will have an Executive Director

– A paid economic development professional who
proudly represents our City and equally promotes our
City’s values and commercial interests

– A 1099 employee to be hired through a 3rd Party
– A salaried position for 30 hours per week with nine (9)

paid holidays
– The LVEDC Board has approved a job description and a

draft contract for this position
– The position has been approved by the LVEDC Board

82



Funding the Executive Director
• Budget additions:

– Salary  (NTE:  $46,800 per year)
– Bonus  (NTE:  15% of annual salary)
– Rent  (Budgeted at $750 per month)
– Add’l memberships, conferences and travel
– Add’l training, webinars and supplies

• Salary and bonus ($53,280) are expected to
be offset by an equal or greater increase in
Sales Tax

83



More Differences in 2016-17
• LVEDC will have an Integrated Marketing Plan

– Executive Director: Hired by the LVEDC, the candidate
will represent our City in a professional manner
promoting our City’s values and commercial interests.

– Retail Coach: Retained as the consulting, marketing
and developer of our retail image for our City.

– EDsuite: Specialized in economic development via
website presence for EDC’s.  Focus is economic
development corporations in the virtual market.

– Proposal Suite: Allows EDC’s to develop a data base
of current land, building and lease availability in the
City of Leon Valley.

84



Integrated Marketing Plan (cont.)
– Advertising: Layouts and narratives for ad space,

brochures, signs, website enhancements, etc.
– Printing: Brochures, signs, banners, announcements,

and other marketing support items
– Supplies and Postage: Paper, ink and postage for

marketing literature, trade shows and trinkets
– Name Recognition: A methodical attempt to bring

recognition to the COLV as a City of choice for
residential and commercial growth

– Communications: Timely and relevant contact with
all LVEDC stakeholders

85



Other Budget Additions

• LVEDC will reimburse COLV $1,000 per month
for services rendered by City Attorney

• Funding for LVEDC projects and grants will
increase from $100K in FY 2015-16 to $190K in
FY 2016-17

86



S.E.E. Statement
• Social Equity – meets the needs of citizens by

assessing the needs, partnerships and implementing
a plan to provide an improved quality of life.

• Environmental Stewardship – working within the
master plan to meet the goals of being an
environmentally conscientious City.

• Economic Development – focus on communication
between the City and involved community groups
that will enhance or promote new business but also
retain existing business to grow the business
infrastructure of the City.

87



Recommendation

The LVEDC Board recommends approval for
proposed FY 2016-2017 budget in the amount of
$414,000.

88



BUDGET PART 2
Fiscal Year 2016-2017

LVEDC Budget Breakdown

89



Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget/Spending

LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget-DRAFT No. 6
8/3/2016 @ 8:05 AM

LVEDC_2016-17_6th Draft
Page1 of 2

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
2016-2017 12-Month Budget

1 2 3
Oct'16 Nov'16 Dec'16

4 5 6
Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17

7 8 9
Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17

10 11 12
Jul'17 Aug'17 Sep'17

12-month
Total

SUPPLIES
5100-520.01 Office Supplies
5100-520.02 Operating Supplies
5100-520.04 Misc. Supplies and Postage

70 55 45
35 25 15

170 100 30

70 70 70
35 25 15

170 170 170

70 70 45
35 25 15

170 170 80

45 45 45
35 25 15
80 80 110

700
300

1,500
Subtotal Supplies 275 180 90 275 265 255 275 265 140 160 150 170 2,500

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

5100-530.01 Professional Services
Miscellaneous Professional Services

5100-530.02 Contractual Services
City Attorney
City of Leon Valley (LVEDC Admin. 40 hr.)
Exec Dir (30-hr. 1099 thru 3rd Party)
Executive Director (Bonus at NTE 15%)

5100-530.03 Telephone
5100-530.04 Utilities - Gas, Water, Electricity
5100-530.05 Printing
5100-530.06 Advertising
5100-530.08 Equipment Rental (LVACC Lease)
5100-530.09 Travel (Includes Workshop Fees)

Registrations:
TEDC (Sales Tax Training)
TEDC (Basic EDC Course)
TEDC (2016 Annual Texas Conf in SATX)
ICSC (Texas Conference in Dallas)
ICSC (National Conf in Las Vegas)
Retail Live! (Austin)
TML Investment Trng.

Travel:
TEDC (Sales Tax Training)
TEDC (Basic EDC Course)

2,000

1,000 1,000 1,000
4,000 4,000 4,000
4,500 3,600 3,600

200 120 50
109 218 545
750 750 750

875
700

275 180

1,710
405

3,000 1,000 1,000

1,000 1,000 1,000
4,000 4,000 4,000
4,500 3,600 3,600

160 160 160
2,182 982 436

750 750 750

2,500 1,000 1,000

1,000 1,000 1,000
4,000 4,000 4,000
4,500 3,600 3,600

160 160 70
1,909 1,091 909

750 750 750

$ 1,220

2,500 1,000 1,000

1,000 1,000 1,000
4,000 4,000 4,000
4,500 3,600 3,600

3,240 3,240

70 70 120
727 0 0
750 750 750

500
1,475

295

16,000

12,000
48,000
46,800

6,480
LVACC
LVACC
1,500
9,109
9,000

875
700
500

1,475
1,220

295
455

1,710
405

90



LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget-DRAFT No. 6
8/3/2016 @ 8:05 AM

LVEDC_2016-17_6th Draft
Page2 of 2

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
2016-2017 12-Month Budget

1 2 3
Oct'16 Nov'16 Dec'16

4 5 6
Jan'17 Feb'17 Mar'17

7 8 9
Apr'17 May'17 Jun'17

10 11 12
Jul'17 Aug'17 Sep'17

12-month
Total

ICSC (Texas Conference in Dallas)
ICSC (National Conf in Las Vegas)
Retail Live! (Austin)

5100-530.10 Membership
TEDC (1 yr.)
ICSC (1 yr.)
IEDC (1 yr.)

5100-530.15 EDC Project Funding (New)
5100-530.XX Miscellaneous

4th of July Sponsorship
Marketing Support
Proposal Suite
EdSuite Website
Other Miscellaneous Expenses

1,250

385
22,800 11,400 5,700

2,100 1,050 525
99 99 99

26,685 1,676

750 125

28,500 19,000 19,000

2,625 1,750 1,750
99 99 99

600

1,642

19,000 19,000 11,400

10,078
1,750 1,750 4,200

99 99 99

2,603

244

250

11,400 11,400 11,400

99 99 99

2,603
1,642

244

2,125
250
385

190,000

10,078
17,500
1,188

600
28,361

Subtotal Contractual Services 64,873 24,788 20,544 47,566 32,341 32,520 38,530 42,528 27,028 25,046 25,698 30,037 411,500
Total Supplies and Contractual Services 65,148 24,968 20,634 47,841 32,606 32,775 38,805 42,793 27,168 25,206 25,848 30,207 414,000

Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget/Spending

91



Notes:
1) New and Renewal Membership payments are arranged in such a way that Board Directors/Staff can attend training and conferences with a "membership"
fee.
2) International Council of Shopping Centers (ICSC) happens every year around Oct-Nov. Payment is required at least one month before conference.
3) FY 2015-2016's budget will be used to pay for ICSC conference in FY 2016-17. FY 2016-2017's budget will pay for the FY 2017-2018 conference and so on.
4) Memberships must be renewed yearly.
5) Sales Tax Training is good for 2 years.
6) Public Funds Investment Act training is good for 2 years.
7) Basic Economic Development Course is optional .
8) TEDC Membership renewal of $500 for Ms. Federico will be paid by COLV.

LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget-DRAFT No. 6
8/3/2016 @ 8:05 AM

Planned Expenses
Page 1 of 1

Planned Expenses Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Total
Registration
TEDC (Sales Tax Training) $875 < Austin, TX $875
TEDC (Basic EDC Course) $700 < Frisco, TX $700
TEDC (2016 Annual Texas Conf) San Antonio > $500 $500
ICSC (Texas Conference) Dallas, TX > $1,475 $1,475
ICSC (Las Vegas) $1,220 < Las Vegas, NV $1,220
Retail Live! (Austin) $295 < Austin, TX $295
TML (Public Funds Investment
Act Training-ONLINE) $275 < On-Line $180 < San Antonio $455

Registration Subtotal $975 $875 $180 $0 $0 $0 $1,220 $0 $0 $0 $295 $1,975 $5,520

Travel
TEDC (Sales Tax Training) $1,710 < Austin, TX $1,710

TEDC (Basic EDC Course) 405 < Frisco, TX $405
ICSC (Texas Conference) Dallas, TX > $2,603 $2,603
ICSC (Las Vegas) $ 1,642 < Las Vegas, NV $1,642
Retail Live! (Austin) $ 244 < Austin, TX $244

Travel Subtotal $405 $0 $1,710 $0 $0 $0 $1,642 $0 $0 $0 $244 $2,603 $6,604
Membership Subtotal
TEDC (1 Year) $1,250 $750 $125 $2,125

ICSC (1 Year) $250 $250
IEDC (1 Year) $385 $385

Membership Subtotal $1,250 $0 $385 $750 $0 $125 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250 $2,760
Totals

Monthly Planned Expenses $2,630 $875 $2,275 $750 $0 $125 $2,862 $0 $0 $0 $539 $4,828 $14,884
Total Planned Expenses $2,630 $3,505 $5,779 $6,529 $6,529 $6,654 $9,516 $9,516 $9,516 $9,516 $10,055 $14,884

LVEDC FY 2016-17 Budget Lines
Travel & Membership Expense Estimates

92



Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget/Spending (1st Four Months)

Budget-Spending_1st 4 mos Last 8 mos
8/11/2016 @ 9:43 AM

LVEDC_2015-16_1st 4 months
Page 1 of 1

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
Original
2015-16
Budget

Expenditures
10-2015 11-2015
October November

Expenditures
12-2015 1-2016

December January

Expenditures
4-month

Total

Remainder of
12-mon. Budget
ending 1/31/16

SUPPLIES

$300.00

$200.00 $11.00 $44.00 $55.00

$300.00

$145.00

5100-520.01 Office Supplies

5100-520.02 Operating Supplies
5100-520.04 Misc. Supplies, Postage & Printing
Subtotal Supplies $500.00 $11.00 $44.00 $55.00 $445.00

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
5100-530.01 Professional Services $75,000.00 see comment $60,075.80

Davidson - General Counsel CK #1346 > $4,013.73 $335.79 $646.00 $4,995.52
Pozza
Patterson

$3,228.68 $2,700.00
$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

$5,928.68
$4,000.00

5100-530.02 Contractual Services (LV)
5100-530.03 Telephone
5100-530.04 Utilities - Gas, Water, Electricity
5100-530.05 Printing
5100-530.06 Advertising
5100-530.08 Equipment Rental
5100-530.09 Travel (Includes Workshop Fees)
5100-530.10 Membership
5100-530.15 EDC Project Funding
5100-530.XX Miscellaneous

$46,000.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$5,000.00
$1,500.00

$162,016.00
$14,800.00

$3,833.00 $3,833.00

$700.00 $175.00

$100,000.00

$3,833.00 $3,833.00

$750.00

$15,332.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$875.00
$750.00

$100,000.00
$0.00

$30,668.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$4,125.00
$750.00

$62,016.00
$14,800.00

Subtotal Contractual Services $304,316.00 $112,775.41 $8,043.79 $5,479.00 $5,583.00 $131,881.20 $172,434.80
Total Supplies and Contractual Services $304,816.00 $112,775.41 $8,054.79 $5,479.00 $5,627.00 $131,936.20 $172,879.80

Oct-Nov'15 Dec'15 - Jan'16 4-mon. Total Check Sum

$172,879.80Budget $186,107.00
Actuals -$120,830.20

Unspent > $65,276.80

Budget $85,082.00
Actuals -$11,106.00

Unspent > $73,976.00

$271,189.00
-$131,936.20
$139,252.80

93



Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget/Spending (Last Eight Months)

Budget-Spending_1st 4 mos
Last 8 mos
8/11/2016 @ 9:44 AM

LVEDC_2015-16_Last 8 months
Page 1 of 2

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
Remainder of

12 mon. Budget

ending 1-31-16

8-Month Budget / Spending Remainder of

12-mon. Budget

ending 9-30-16

2-2016 3-2016 4-2016 5-2016 6-2016 7-2016 8-2016 9-2016 8-month

TotalFebruary March April May June July August September

SUPPLIES

5100-520.01 Office Supplies

5100-520.02 Operating Supplies

5100-520.04 Misc. Supplies, Postage & Printing

Texas Secretary of State

City of Leon Valley

City of Leon Valley

Monarch Trophy

Horizon Printing

$300.00

$145.00 $18.48 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00 $20.00 $15.00 $15.00 $6.52

$5.00 $25.00

$13.48
$6.74

$88.00

$376.00

$145.00

$30.00

$13.48
$6.74

$88.00

$376.00

$300.00

$145.00
-$514.22

Budget -- Subtotal Supplies $445.00 $18.48 $25.00 $25.00 $20.00 $20.00 $15.00 $15.00 $6.52 $145.00

Expenses -- Subtotal Supplies $5.00 $108.22 $401.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,014.22

Budget Impact $13.48 -$83.22 -$376.00 $20.00 $20.00 $15.00 $15.00 $6.52 -$869.22 -$69.22

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES

5100-530.01 Professional Services

Davidson - General Counsel

Davidson - Larry Little Case

Pozza

Patterson

Retail Coach (need to see contract)

$60,075.80 see comment

$0.00 << Assumes no more payments to Davidson after February 2016

$60.00 $0.00
$22,200.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 << Assumes $4K in add'l cost for remainder of FY.

$1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 << Assumes 90-days to terminate

$5,000.00 << Amt to be paid to finish website

$0.00

$0.00

$60.00
$26,200.00

$5,000.00

$5,000.00

$23,815.80

Budget $36,260.00

Patterson $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $9,210.00 $11,210.00

Pozza

Davidson- Larry Little Case

Davidson- Larry Little Case

Davidson- Larry Little Case

Davidson- General Counsel

Davidson- Larry Little Case

Victor O. Schinnerer & Co, Inc

Jorge Herrera CPA CIA

Proposal Suite

$22,200.00

$2,958.65

$141.00
$100.00

$51.00

$60.00
$280.00

$1,250.00

$396.00

$22,200.00

$2,958.65

$141.00
$100.00

$51.00

$60.00
$280.00

$1,250.00

$396.00

Retail Coach $15,000.00 $15,000.00

Expenses $53,646.65

Remaining Budget -$17,386.65

5100-530.02 Contractual Services (LV)

City of Leon Valley

5100-530.03 Telephone
5100-530.04 Utilities - Gas, Water, Electricity

5100-530.05 Printing

5100-530.06 Advertising

5100-530.08 Equipment Rental

5100-530.09 Travel (Includes Workshop Fees)

Investment Training - Manea

TEDC San Antonio - Manea

ICSC Dallas - Manea

Retail Live! Austin - Manea

$30,668.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$4,125.00

$3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,837.00 $30,668.00

$30,668.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$3,275.00

$275.00
$500.00

$295.00

$295.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$850.00

$1,910.00

$7,666.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,833.00 $3,837.00

$3,275.00
$275.00

$500.00

$295.00
$295.00

94



$143,047.00

Budget-Spending_1st 4 mos Last 8 mos
8/11/2016 @ 9:44 AM

LVEDC_2015-16_Last 8 months
Page 2 of 2

LVEDC EXPENDITURES
Remainder of

12 mon. Budget

ending 1-31-16

8-Month Budget / Spending Remainder of

12-mon. Budget

ending 9-30-16

2-2016 3-2016 4-2016 5-2016 6-2016 7-2016 8-2016 9-2016 8-month

TotalFebruary March April May June July August September

5100-530.10 Membership

TEDC

5100-530.15 EDC Project Funding

Adrian De Los Reyes- Farmers Insurance

Brenda Tellez- Tellez Tamales

Joseph F. Nazaroff-Ideas Unlimited
COLV -- Kinman House from Acct. 530.15

5100-530.16 Miscellaneous

Nitro Pro
Patty Manea

City of Leon Valley -- 4th of July

COLV -- Kinman House from Acct. 530.16
Petty Cash

$750.00

$62,016.00

$14,800.00

$700.00 << Assumes no travel this year to ICSC (Charlotte, NC)

$125.00

$8,857.00 $8,857.00 $8,857.00 $8,857.00 $8,857.00 $8,857.00 $8,857.00
$4,822.37

$810.00

$567.50

$700.00

$125.00

$61,999.00
$4,822.37

$810.00

$567.50

$50.00

$575.00

$17.00
$0.00

$4,800.00

-$31,087.71

$55,799.13 < Kinman $55,799.13

$5,000.00 $5,000.00

$159.99

$41.85
$10,000.00

$10,000.00

$159.99

$41.85
$10,000.00

$30,885.87 < Kinman $30,885.87

$500.00 $500.00 -$500.00

Budget -- Subtotal Contractual Services $172,434.80 $27,093.00 $20,690.00 $16,390.00 $21,965.00 $18,690.00 $12,690.00 $12,690.00 $12,694.00 $142,902.00 -$16,456.56

Expenses -- Subtotal Contractual Services $23,200.00 $18,174.01 $5,083.00 $3,874.85 $14,796.50 $29,908.00 $90,518.00 $3,837.00 $188,891.36

Budget -- Total Splys & Contractual Svcs $172,879.80 $27,111.48 $20,715.00 $16,415.00 $21,985.00 $18,710.00 $12,705.00 $12,705.00 $12,700.52 $143,047.00 -$16,525.78

Expenses -- Total Supplies and Contractual Svcs $23,205.00 $18,282.23 $5,484.00 $3,874.85 $14,796.50 $29,908.00 $90,518.00 $3,837.00 $189,905.58

Variance of Budget vs. Expenses $3,906.48 $2,432.77 $10,931.00 $18,110.15 $3,913.50 -$17,203.00 -$77,813.00 $8,863.52 -$46,858.58 < Unfavorable

Check Sum
$172,879.80 The anticipated expenditures for FY 2015-2016 total $321,841.78 up $20,783.58 from June 2017

Check Sum

Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget/Spending (Last Eight Months)

95



BUDGET PART 3
Renewal of Support Services Contract with the

Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation
(LVEDC)

96



Renewal of Support Services Contract with
the Leon Valley Economic Development

Corporation (LVEDC)

PURPOSE

The City of Leon Valley has provided support services to
the Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation
since 2009. The attached Service Agreement continues
the same terms and conditions as preciously approved.

97



Service Agreement - S.E.E. Statement

• Social – It is an equitable partnership for the City and
the LVEDC to collaborate and work together toward
successful economic development.

• Economic – Support of the Service Agreement fosters
progress in economic development for the City
allowing the LVEDC access to facilities and services
which allow them to initiate programs to revitalize
relocate and encourage business expansion and
retention.

• Environmental – N/A

98



Service Agreement Continued:

FISCAL IMPACT

The contract amount is $48,000 annually or $4,000.00 monthly
from the Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation to the
City.

RECOMMENDATION

Authorize City Manager to enter into an agreement for facilities
and support services known as the “Service Agreement between
the City of Leon Valley and the Leon Valley Economic
Development Corporation”.

The LVEDC Board recommends approval of $48,000 for FY 2016-
2017 for Contractual Services.

99



BUDGET PART 4
Executive Director

Job Description & Contract

100



Executive Director - Job Description
SALARY

$22.50 per hour working 30 hours per week
$3, 900 per month
$46,800 Annually
Overtime incurred with special events or projects outside of the contracted 30 hours per week will be paid at $30 per hour until weekly
maximum of 40 hours is reached.  Hours incurred past the 40 hours per week will then be paid at $40 per hour (LVEDC approval prior
to the event will be obtained).

GENERAL DESCRIPTION:

This is a contracted position under the general direction of the Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation.  An Economic
Development Director assists in supporting the City's economic development program and redevelopment activities, including
efforts focused on the retention or expansion of existing business with efforts to bring in specific targeted businesses to the Leon
Valley.  Coordinates with City staff and developers to include the preparation of development agreements, develops and executes
marketing and business development efforts, coordinates with other County and City agencies, and follows-up on business
leads/interested parties. Reporting to the LVEDC at the monthly meetings.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

❏ Works effectively with stakeholder groups (e.g., special interest groups, workforce development, community colleges,
universities, hospitals, research institutions, citizen groups, etc.).

❏ Demonstrates strong personal commitment to the organization and its long-term success.

101



ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS (cont.)
❏ Demonstrates the importance of confidentiality with all stakeholders.
❏ Possesses a strong sense of personal integrity, duty, and responsibility. Upholds ethical practices.
❏ Has a high level of personal energy.
❏ Manages time effectively and in relation to priorities.
❏ Engages in continuous learning.
❏ Conveys confidence, passion, and poise.
❏ Strong Values—integrity, strong service orientation, confident yet modest, and assumes responsibility.
❏ Fully engaged to insure that marketing initiatives generate documented results with regard to job growth and economic

development.
❏ Demonstrated experience as a visionary—the ability to see beyond today.
❏ Demonstrated creative drive—the ability to identify new solutions and “think outside the box.”
❏ Experience selling concepts and generating the excitement necessary to propel successful accomplishments.
❏ Expert listener.
❏ Proven political skills.
❏ Strong understanding of public finance, public incentive programs, and capital investment considerations.
❏ Strong written and verbal communication skills, particularly public speaking.
❏ Develops effective relationships and open channels of communication with each stakeholder group, owners of potential

projects, resource groups, media, etc.
❏ Understands the needs, goals, and motivations of external stakeholder groups (i.e., the community) as well as internal

supervisors, peers, and direct reports.
❏ Recognizes, articulates, and resolves conflicts and differences of opinion among stakeholder groups.
❏ Manages own emotions and responds effectively to strong emotional reactions of others.
❏ Builds an effective executive team within the organization.
❏ Conduct site visits and monitor business results
❏ Develop a registry of vacant land, buildings and retail space to provide a database for potential investors
❏ Develop a Community Economic Development Web site
❏ Works in an office environment 30% and 70% in the field, some travel expected.

102



MANAGEMENT SKILLS:
❏ Develops and uses a “system” to track, document, shepherd, and guide economic development projects from inquiry to

completion. Keeps the “system” current.
❏ Attracts, retains, and develops top talent.
❏ Establishes clear performance expectations, including results to accomplish, metrics to achieve, and processes to

follow.
❏ Develops direct reports and ensures ongoing development of others in the organization.
❏ Manages meetings effectively, including provision of agenda, supporting material, and meeting notes.
❏ Provides direct and, at times, tough messages to stakeholder groups and does so respectfully without “burning

bridges.”

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities

❏ Identify complex problems and review related information to develop and evaluate options and implement solutions.
❏ Manage own time and the time of others.
❏ Knowledge of laws, legal codes, court procedures, precedents, government regulations, executive orders, organization

rules, and the democratic political process.
❏ Ability to listen to and understand information and ideas presented through spoken words and sentences.
❏ Ability to prepare written and graphic materials; to compose clear and concise reports; to prepare and make

presentations; and to communicate effectively, orally and in writing, with citizens, professional peers and elected
officials.

❏ Basic proficiency in word processing and knowledge of spreadsheet computer applications required.
❏ Ability to operate a motor vehicle.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

103



MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS (cont.)
Education and Experience

❏ Four year degree in business, public administration, urban planning or a directly related field
❏ Direct experience associated with business development in one or more areas such as commercial,

manufacturing and industrial development, and/or
❏ Direct experience in community planning and development in a municipal environment; or
❏ Any equivalent combination of experience and additional education or training that provides the knowledge,

skills, and abilities to perform this work.
❏ Experience with Leon Valley projects is preferred.
❏ Candidates with direct experience will be considered if ICSC certification is achieved within the first year of

employment.
❏ Candidates that possess a degree in other areas and has a majority of the job requirements will be considered

ICSC certification is achieved within the first year.

Licenses, Certifications, and Registrations

❏ Must possess and maintain a valid Texas Driver's license
❏ A Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) check will be made to determine acceptance of past driving record.
❏ Membership in good standing with TEDC, ICSC (other professional memberships will be considered towards

professionalism in the community)

104



Executive Director – Contract
Economic Development Director
Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation

Years In Field/Career Minimum 1 year prefer 4 years. Consideration based on applicant for the position

Salary (Annual) $46, 800

Overtime Rate Hours up to 40 hours paid at $30 per hour, hours in excess of 40 hours paid at $40 per hour on
approved projects by the board.

Job Location Texas, United States, 78238

Salary Type Contracted 30 hours per week

Overtime Hours Per Project Deadline approved by LVEDC

Employer Type Government - State & Local

Employer's Product/Business City Government
Economic Development Director

Vacation Weeks Per the City of Leon Valley Government approved holiday schedule.

Health Benefit

Bonus

None.  Contracted position, candidate assumes responsibility.

On completion of projects two bonuses will be paid out at the sum of $3,240 x 2 = $6,480 total for the
year.

105



LVEDC Budget FY 2016-2017

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

106



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C # 2016-08-16-06

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Patricia Manea, Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

SUBJECT: Authorizing the expenditure by the City of Leon Valley Economic
Development Corporation (LVEDC) in the amount of $86,685.00 to the
City of Leon Valley for renovation and equipment to the Kinman House
project; and authorizing the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding
with the LVEDC in connection therewith.

PURPOSE

For the consideration and authorization of $86,685 to the City of Leon Valley for the Kinman
House Project. Article IV Functional Corporate Duties and Requirements, Section 4.5
Expenditure of Corporate Money, Subsection (c) of the Bylaws of the City Leon Valley
Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC) requires that projects approved by the LVEDC
Board of Directors for project funding in excess of $10,000.00 be approved by a resolution of
the City Council.

On July 27, 2016, the LVEDC held their regular meeting and approved by resolution the
contribution to the Kinman House project. The contribution by the LVEDC is for improvements
to be made to the Kinman House. The money will be used to purchase some kitchen
equipment for the facility.  Improvements will include other hard costs involved in finishing out
the facility (e.g. electrical wiring and plumbing costs to meet code compliance. The contribution
will enable the project to move forward. The repairs and improvements to the Kinman House
will provide the City with more economic development opportunities in Leon Valley by adding
to the sales tax base, creating jobs and adding to the quality of life of the residents which is
part of the S.E.E. statement for the City of Leon Valley.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social – The Kinman House project will be open to the public and may be enjoyed by all locals
and visitors; thus, helping the City promote a superior quality of life.

Economic – To provide a diverse and versatile business environment that supports a healthy
economy by attracting viable businesses.

ITEM 9

107



Environmental – Rehabilitation of the Kinman House decreases the carbon footprint by re-
purposing a building instead of building a new structure.

FISCAL IMPACT

The contribution would be funded by the FY 2016-2017 LVEDC Budget line item “Project
Funding”. Money for the project will be identified in the LVEDC Budget resulting from the
revenue from the collection of 1/8 of one-cent in sales tax for economic development purposes
as authorized by law. The LVEDC is a Type B (formerly 4B) economic development
corporation which uses the collected sales tax revenues to promote and conduct economic
development in and for City of Leon Valley.

RECOMMENDATION

The LVEDC Board recommends approval.

APPROVED: _____________________ DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:
_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

108



RESOLUTION No. 16-020R

AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE BY THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (LVEDC) IN THE
AMOUNT OF $86,685.00 TO THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY FOR
RENOVATION AND EQUIPMENT TO THE KINMAN HOUSE PROJECT;
AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN LVEDC AND THE CITY OF LEON
VALLEY IN CONNECTION THEREWITH.

WHEREAS, Article IV Functional Corporate Duties and Requirements,
Section 4.5 Expenditure of Corporate Money, Subsection (c) of the Bylaws
of the City Leon Valley Economic Development Corporation (LVEDC)
requires that projects approved by the LVEDC Board of Directors for
project funding in excess of $10,000.00 be approved by a resolution of the
City Council; and

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2016 the Board of Directors of LVEDC approved
by Resolution No. ______ to provide $86,685.00 to the City of Leon Valley
(“City”) to renovate and provide equipment to the Kinman House Project;
and

WHEREAS, in order to receive said funds and provide said services, it is
necessary to execute a Service Agreement between the City and LVEDC;
and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of City Council to authorize the expenditure by
the LVEDC in the amount of $86,685.00 to the City for equipment and the
renovation to the Kinman House Project; and

WHEREAS, it is also the desire of City Council to authorize the execution
of a Memorandum of Understanding between the City and LVEDC to carry
out the management of the Project;

109



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. The expenditure by the City of Leon Valley Economic
Development Corporation (LVEDC) in the amount of $86,685 to the City of
Leon Valley for renovation and equipment to the Kinman House Project
and the Memorandum of Understanding in substantially final form,
attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes as Attachment 1,
are hereby authorized.

Section 2. The City Manager or in her stead the Assistant City Manager
is hereby authorized to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the
LVEDC for the Kinman House Project.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
passage by four (4) or more affirmative votes of the entire City Council;
otherwise, said effective date shall be ten (10) days from the date of
passage hereof.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 16th day of August 2016.

Mayor Chris Riley

ATTEST:

Saundra Passailaigue, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Denise Frederick
City Attorney

110



Presentation, discussion and
possible action to approve LVEDC
Funds in the amount of $86,684 for

the Kinman House Project

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

111



Purpose
• Authorize the City Manager to enter into an

agreement with the Leon Valley Economic
Development Corporation to contribute LVEDC
funds for the Kinman House Project.

• The contribution by the LVEDC is for
improvements to be made to the Kinman
House.

112



Purpose
• The money will be used to purchase some

kitchen equipment for the facility.

• Improvements will also include other hard
costs involved in finishing out the project(ie.
Electrical wiring and plumbing costs to meet
code compliance).

113



SEE Leon Valley
• Social – The Kinman House project will be open to the

public and may be enjoyed by all locals and visitors;
thus, helping the City promote a superior quality of
life.

• Economic – To provide a diverse and versatile business
environment that supports a healthy economy by
attracting viable businesses.

• Environmental – Rehabilitation of the Kinman House
decreases the carbon footprint by re-purposing a
building instead of building a new structure.

114



Fiscal Impact
• Money for the project will be identified in the

LVEDC Budget resulting from the revenue
from the collection of 1/8 of one-cent in sales
tax for economic development purposes as
authorized by law.

115



Recommendation
• The LVEDC Board recommends approval.

116



Presentation, discussion and
possible action to approve LVEDC
Funds in the amount of $86,684 for

the Kinman House Project

City Council Meeting
August 16, 2016

117



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C # 2016-08-16-07

FROM: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

TO: Mayor and Council

SUBJECT: Conduct a Public Hearing and consider action on the attached Ordinance
approving and adopting Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budgets and associated
Capital Acquisition Plans

PURPOSE

Each year before adopting the budgets the City Council must conduct a public hearing
on the budgets and formally adopt the budgets by approving the attached Ordinance for
the Fiscal Year 2017 Budgets and associated Capital Acquisition Plans for the City of
Leon Valley, Texas.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social - The budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control.
It addresses the goals of the City, establishes priorities, determines the level of funding
commitment, and serves as a day-to-day operations guide. The City establishes a
budget for twelve separate funds.  Activities of the General Fund, Water and Sewer
(Enterprise) Fund, Grant Fund,  Crime Control and Prevention District, Building Security
Fund, Child Safety Fund, Municipal Court Technology Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Community Center Fund, Street Maintenance Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Police
Forfeiture are included in the annual budget.

Economic - Utilizing taxpayer monies to maximize public safety, City administration and
City programs/services allows the City to actively pursue Economic Development
opportunities.

Environmental -The City’s El Verde by 2020 initiative continues to be supported through
careful allocation of budgetary dollars that promotes sustainability.

FISCAL IMPACT

The attached document provides the funding mechanism for City operations.

STRATEGIC GOALS

N/A

ITEM 10

118



RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that a public hearing be conducted and that the City Council then
vote to adopt the attached Budgets and Capital Acquisition Plans for Fiscal Year 2017.

APPROVED: ____________________ DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

______________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

______________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

119



ORDINANCE No. 16-029

ADOPTING THE ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET AND CAPITAL ACQUISITION
PLANS FOR THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2017;
APPROVING PROJECTS INCLUDED IN THE PLANS; APPROPRIATING FUNDS
AND PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT.

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Leon Valley Code of Ordinances, it is necessary to
adopt a budget for the Fiscal Year 2017; and

WHEREAS, a Proposed Annual Budget for the period commencing October 1, 2016,
and ending September 30, 2017 has been prepared by the City Manager and the City
Council has considered the City Manager’s proposals; and

WHEREAS, after public notice, work sessions and hearings were held on the Proposed
Budget and the City Council has considered the issue for several weeks; and

WHEREAS, on August 16, 2016, City Council considered the Proposed Budget; NOW,
THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY,
TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION 1. The Proposed Annual Budget and associated Capital Acquisition Plans
for the City of Leon Valley, Texas, for the Fiscal Year 2017, as set out in Attachment
I, is attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the following
sections of this Ordinance, is hereby approved and adopted for the fiscal year
commencing October 1, 2016 and ending September 30, 2017.

SECTION 2. Appropriations. The sums set forth in Attachment A are hereby
appropriated for the ensuing Fiscal Year 2017 for the different City Departments and
purposes of the City.

SECTION 3. Personnel Positions.

A. The number of City-funded personnel positions in all City-funded Departments
shall not exceed the total number by indicated fund as set forth in Attachment A
unless authorized by subsequent ordinance(s).

B. Any Departments, Divisions, Sections, Offices, or Programs which have been
funded in previous budgets but are not contained in the attached Fiscal Year
2017 Budget Document (Attachment A) are hereby abolished. Any personnel
positions that have been authorized in previous budgets, but are not contained in
Attachment A are hereby abolished.

120



SECTION 4. Texas Municipal Retirement System. Pursuant to Section 855.407(g)
of the Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act), the City hereby elects to make
future normal and prior service contributions to its account in the municipal
accumulation fund of the Texas Municipal Retirement System at such combined
rate of the total compensation paid by the City to employees who are members of
the System, as the System's actuary shall annually determine as the rate necessary
to fund within the amortization period determined as applicable to the City under the
TMRS Act the costs of all benefits which are or may become chargeable to or are to
be paid out of the City's account in said accumulation fund, regardless of other
provisions of the TMRS Act limiting the combined rate of City contributions. This
election shall be effective on October 1, 2016.

SECTION 5. Budget Document Filing. The City Manager shall cause the Fiscal Year
2017 Budget and a copy of this Ordinance to be filed with the City Secretary and the
County Clerk of Bexar County, as required by the Texas Local Government Code.

SECTION 6. Conflict Provisions. Any discrepancy between this Ordinance and
Attachments A shall be resolved in favor of Attachments A.

SECTION 7. Effective Date. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, this
Ordinance shall take effect on the 1st day of October, 2016.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley
this the 16th day of August, 2016.

A P P R O V E D

CHRIS RILEY
MAYOR

Attest:

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

Approved as to Form:

DENISE FREDERICK
City Attorney

121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



FY 2017
Proposed Budget

Public Hearing

August 16, 2016

212



General Fund

213



Overview

• Budget is balanced
• Our City remains in sound financial condition

with good financial reserves
• For FY 2017, we are projecting a balance in the

General Fund of approximately
• $1,844,178 in the Capital Reserve Fund
• $900,000 in the Emergency Fund
• Estimated total of $2,744,178

214



Overview

• The Emergency Fund alone represents six (6)
weeks operating income

• The combined fund balance represents
approximately four (4) months of operating
income

215



Revenue Highlights

• Operating Revenues - $8,267,180
• To fund the FY 2017 General Fund Budget,

we are proposing a tax rate of $0.556599 cent
per $100 of valuation

• This is a decrease in the tax rate of $0.005016
from FY 2016

• The tax components are as follows:
• $0.474645 for Maintenance and Operations
• $0.081954 for Interest and Sinking (I&S) Fund

Debt Service

216



Revenue Highlights
Continued

• Once again we are seeing an increase in tax
value
• Tax year 2016 market value increase 65,358,816
• Tax year 2015 market value increase 105,990,346

• Appeals loss for FY 2016
• 23,449,918

• Appeals will be greater than last year
• Increased Ad Valorem Tax revenue by $164,095

217



Average Taxable Home Value Increase

FY 2016 FY 2017 Increase
$138,750 $147,325 $8,575

FY 2016 FY 2017 Increase
$779.24 $820.01 $40.77

Average Tax  Increase Due to
Appraised Value Increase

218



Property Tax Revenues

 $3,400,000

 $3,500,000

 $3,600,000

 $3,700,000

 $3,800,000

 $3,900,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,100,000

 $4,200,000

 $4,300,000

 $4,400,000

 $4,500,000

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017
Revenue $3,809,355 $4,012,433 $4,143,068 $4,382,351 $4,454,859

219



Revenue loss from Property Tax Freeze

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 *2017

2013 2014 2015 2016 *2017
Freeze Loss $70,929 $99,109 $132,758 $165,117 $208,763

220



Tax Rate
History

2013 2014 2015 2016 *2017
M&O 0.476752 0.476752 0.476752 0.471173 0.471173
I&S 0.09753 0.106163 0.098755 0.090442 0.090442
Total 0.574282 0.582915 0.575507 0.561615 0.561615

M&O

I&S

Total

221



Outstanding Debt

Outstanding
Issue as of 9/30 Purpose

2009 Refunding Bonds 945,000$ Refunded the 1998 Certificates of Obligation
 that were originally issued to fund capital
 Improvements and equipment.

2009 PPFCO 825,000$ To fund the purchase a fire a ladder truck.
2012 GO Bonds 6,795,000$ Funds police, fire and administration complex

construction and renovations.
2016  Certificates of Obligation 1,970,000$ Utility projects.

Maturity
Issue Date

2009 Refunding Bonds 08/01/2018
2009 PPFCO 08/01/2029
2012 GO Bonds 08/01/2032
2016  Certificates of Obligation 08/01/2046

222



Revenue Highlights
Continued

• Franchise fees reflect a slight increase due to
CPS franchise fees and court revenue

• $50,000 added to Building Department revenue
due to market adjustments in the fee schedule

• On May 7, 2016, the Council approved a credit
card processing fee of 5% for individuals who
pay fines, fees and other related municipal court
fees with a credit card
• We are estimating the revenue to be generated from

this fee to be $35,000 annually

223



Expenditure Highlights

• Operating Expenditures - $8,329,742
• An increase of $371,337 in operating expenditures

• Capital Expenditures - $411,495
• A decrease of $602,013

• Spending on Capital is lower due to purchase of a Fire
Engine in FY 2016 - $480,920

224



Fund Balance
History

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017
Fund Balance $3,356,717 $3,656,058 $3,679,498 $3,218,685 $2,744,178

225



General Fund
Budget Summary

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATED BUDGET

REVENUES 7,623,046$ 7,875,304$ 8,049,193 8,267,180$
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 7,623,046 7,875,304 8,049,193 8,267,180

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  Capital Reserve - 1,013,958 990,518 411,945
  Other Reserve Uses 89,465 89,465 230,000
  Transfers In - 599,000 665,031 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES - 1,702,423 1,745,014 641,945

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 7,623,046 9,577,727 9,794,207 8,909,125

EXPENDITURES
  Operations 7,305,455 7,958,405 7,652,460 8,329,742
  Capital Outlay 10,393 1,013,958 990,518 411,945
  Operating Transfers Out 257,479 17,000 17,000 -
Debt Service:
   Principal - - -
   Bond Issuance Costs - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,573,327 8,989,363 8,659,978 8,741,687

Ending Fund Balance 2,779,498$ 2,264,439$ 2,318,685$ 1,844,178$

226



General Fund
Operating Revenue Summary

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Property Taxes 3,434,382$ 3,690,905$ 3,755,000$ 64,095$
Sales Tax 2,242,189 2,277,100 2,258,100 (19,000)
Franchise Fees 898,466 959,929 978,334 18,405
Licenses, Permits, Fees -
and Fines 885,449 810,150 953,390 143,240
Other and Grants 162,560 137,220 222,356 85,136

TOTAL REVENUES 7,623,046$ 7,875,304$ 8,167,180$ 291,876$

227



General Government
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

* Personnel Services 480,253$ 576,006$ 629,614$ 53,608$
Supplies 37,485 69,256 43,100 (26,156)
Contractual Services 372,304 376,830 290,572 (86,258)
Capital 10,393 187,503 63,355 (124,148)

TOTAL 900,435$ 1,209,595$ 1,026,641$ (182,954)$
* Deleted a position in the Court. Moved Animal Control and Code
Enforcement to Public Works.

228



General Government
Business Office

Contractual Category Expenditures

Business Office /Court 2016 2017 Difference
Professional services
     Jury Trials 3,600 3,600 -
     Judges Fees 23,400 23,400 -
     Prosecutor for Court and Appeals to Bexar County 31,900 - (31,900)
     Linebarger Fines and Fees Collection/Court 1,000 500 (500)
     Software Updates 3,000 3,000 -
     Credit Card Fees 6,048 6,048 -
     EAP and Cafeteria Plan 182 182 -
     Cintas 500 500 -

69,630$ 37,230$ (32,400)$

Utilities - Telephone 102 102 -
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 2,300 8,400 6,100
Printing 1,000 1,800 800
Travel - Training 3,120 3,120 -
TOTAL 76,152$ 50,652$ (25,500)$

229



General Government
Finance

Contractual Category Expenditures
Finance 2016 2017 Difference

Professional Services
     External Audit Fees (General Fund) 7,375 7,500 125
     Bexar Appraisal District Dues 22,480 23,000 520
     Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fee (Bexar County) 7,000 7,600 600
     SEC Rule Reporting 1,500 1,500 -
     Employee Public Bond 350 375 25
     Bank Analysis Fees (General Fund Portion) 5,900 5,900 -
     Software Updates 15,000 16,000 1,000
     Remote back-up 800 800 -
     EAP and Cafeteria Plan 300 300 -
     Bank Courier Fees 1,000 1,000 -

61,705$ 63,975$ 2,270$

Utilities - Telephone 200 200 -
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 2,300 8,400 6,100
Printing 1,500 2,000 500
Advertising 4,000 4,000 -
Travel - Training 2,000 4,000 2,000
TOTAL 71,705$ 82,575$ 10,870$

230



General Government
Manager and Council

Contractual Category Expenditures
City Manager and Council FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference

Professional Services
   City Attorney/TML (non-retainer requests & projects) 51,428 15,000 (36,428)
   Veterinary Services/ Paws Rescue Ranch 6,525 - (6,525)
   Spanish Translator for Election Documents 1,300 1,000 (300)
   Annual Codification for City Web 375 375 -
   Recodification Project (including legal review) 17,600 - (17,600)
   EAP and Cafeteria Plan 425 425 -
   DPS Agency 48 96 48
   Records Destruction 1,400 1,400 -
   COBRA 1,500 1,500 -
   Fire Inspection of City Hall Extinguishers 200 670 470

80,801$ 20,466$ (60,335)$
Contractual Services
   Bexar County Elections 15,000 15,000 -
   Social Security Contract 35 35 -
   Pest Control (quarterly treatment) 1,580 1,580 -
   City Hall Office Cleaning Services 15,600 17,532 1,932
   IKON Office Solutions 4,200 4,200 -
  Techlead 1,800 1,800 -
   Pitney Bowes - Maintenance for Mailing Base 1,750 1,750 -
   Administration Office Space Rental 30,000 - (30,000)
   ACA (Affordable Care Act) Reporting 10,000 1,500 (8,500)
   Bonds- CM, ACM, CS, Mayor  & all Council 1,580 2,160 580
   Update to MAC '13 in with Office - 9,000 9,000
   Accela Minutes & Agendas - 6,600 6,600
   City Council Streaming Services - 8,340 8,340

81,545$ 69,497$ (12,048)$

Utilities - Telephone 18,412 15,312 (3,100)
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 2,490 6,600 4,110
Printing 6,700 3,000 (3,700)
Advertising 8,750 4,500 (4,250)
Repairs and Maintenance - External 1,500 1,800 300
Equipment Rental 500 - (500)
Travel - Training 23,150 31,275 8,125
Membership,  Dues,  Licenses 4,550 4,270 (280)
Subscription to Publications 575 625 50
   GRAND TOTAL 228,973$ 157,345$ (71,628)$

231



General Government

• Major items included:
• $130,000 for City Manager market salary adjustments

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $20,000 for a Human Resources paperless system
• $4,000 for two cash counters
• $7,980 phase one and two for security cameras in the

front portion of the municipal building
• $3,000 for fitness equipment
• $28,375 for fencing the back parking lot

232



Police
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 1,659,584$ 1,734,025$ 1,797,405$ 63,380$
Supplies 122,269 91,650 83,500 (8,150)
Contractual Services 72,456 83,414 66,022 (17,392)
Capital - - - -

TOTAL 1,854,309$ 1,909,089$ 1,946,927$ 37,838$

233



Police
Contractual Category Expenditures

Police Department FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   EAP and Cafeteria Plan 3,175 3,280 105
   New Hire Expenses 5,961 1,000 (4,961)

9,136$ 4,280$ (4,856)$
Contractual Services
   Copier 1,000 1,000 -
   Computer Maintenance 400 400 -
   CAD/RMS Service Contract 3,200 5,200 2,000
   Leads Online 900 1,400 500
   Crime Reports 500 1,500 1,000
   800mzh Radio Airtime 16,000 16,000 -
   DDC Memberbership 700 - (700)
   Voyager - 3,400 3,400
   Forensic Testing - 4,000 4,000

22,700$ 32,900$ 10,200$

Utilities - Telephone 17,000 5,000 (12,000)
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 13,200 9,000 (4,200)
Printing 4,500 2,200 (2,300)
Advertising - - -
Repairs and Maintenance - External 10,900 5,000 (5,900)
Equipment Rental - - -
Travel - Training 3,000 6,500 3,500
Membership,  Dues,  Licenses 1,836 - (1,836)
Subscription to Publications 1,142 1,142 -
TOTAL 83,414$ 66,022$ (17,392)$

234



Police

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $19,905 for covered parking for police vehicles

(Police Forfeiture Fund)

235



Fire
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 1,935,449$ 1,985,793$ 2,131,380$ 145,587$
Supplies 88,465 76,761 80,604 3,843
Contractual Services 178,468 179,129 168,848 (10,281)
Capital - 574,015 38,890 (535,125)

TOTAL 2,202,382$ 2,815,698$ 2,419,722$ (395,976)$

236



Fire
Contractual Category Expenditures

Fire Department FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   Xerox Firehouse Incident Reporting Software 2,316$ 2,316$ -
   Medical Waste Disposal 1,071$ 1,071$ -
   Medical Control 27,000$ 15,000$ (12,000)
   Physio-Control - 12-lead ECG service 6,970$ 6,970$ -
   Intermedix EMS Billing Services 11,000$ 11,000$ -
   Linebarger Legal Services 4,200$ 4,200$ -

52,557$ 40,557$ (12,000)$
Contractual Services
   Professional Tech Services 772$ 772$ -
   David K. Young Consulting 360$ 360$ -
   Logical Management Solutions 926$ 926$ -
   Pest Control 600$ 600$ -
   Stericycle 430$ 430$ -

3,088$ 3,088$ -$

Utilities - Telephone 5,000$ 5,000$ -
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 18,418$ 28,487$ 10,069
Printing 319$ 319$ -
Advertising 750$ 750$ -
Repairs and Maintenance - External 78,372$ 70,372$ (8,000)
Equipment Rental -$ -$ -
Travel - Training 10,383$ 9,383$ (1,000)
Membership,  Dues,  Licenses 5,800$ 6,450$ 650
Subscription to Publications 4,442$ 4,442$ -
   TOTAL 179,129$ 168,848$ (10,281)$

237



Fire

• Major items included:
• $59,248 for a 40 hour a week Deputy Fire

Marshall position in the Fire Department
• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:

• $6,390 for bunker gear
• $11,000 for a flood notification siren
• $4,000 for hoses, adapters and nozzles
• $17,500 for fencing at the Fire Station

238



Public Works
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 739,868$ 796,301$ 937,352$ 141,051$
Supplies 164,266 172,300 215,500 43,200
Contractual Services 243,485 283,415 504,869 221,454
Capital - 157,500 251,000 93,500

TOTAL 1,147,619$ 1,409,516$ 1,908,721$ 499,205$

239



Public Works
Contractual Category Expenditures

Public Works FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   EAP and Cafeteria Plan 2,724 2,724 -
   Engineering services 35,276 275,000 239,724
   Animal Control Stray Services - 6,525 6,525

38,000$ 284,249$ 246,249$
Contractual
   Debris haul off 25,000 25,000 -
   Copier service agreement 2,500 2,500 -
   Uniforms 7,500 7,500 -
   Computer servicing 5,000 4,000 (1,000)
   School zone light maintenance 120 120 -
   ACS shop software 300 300 -
   Tire disposal 1,000 1,000 -
   PubWorks software 2,800 2,800 -
   Map updates 5,000 10,000 5,000
   Fire extinguisher servicing 1,100 1,100 -
   Other contractual services 14,850 12,000 (2,850)
   Bandera Road ROW mowing 28,000 - (28,000)
   A/C test & balance City Hall 3,830 - (3,830)
   Slurry seal Executive Center 4,000 - (4,000)
   City-wide tree removal - 5,000 5,000

101,000$ 71,320$ (29,680)$

Utilities - phone 3,615 4,900 1,285
Utilities/Electric, Water 94,300 94,000 (300)
Printing 2,000 2,500 500
Advertising 2,000 2,400 400
Repairs & Maintenance - external 33,000 31,800 (1,200)
Equipment rental 5,000 3,500 (1,500)
Travel/Training 1,000 7,000 6,000
Memberships, dues, licenses 3,500 3,200 (300)
   GRAND TOTAL 283,415$ 504,869$ 221,454$

240



Public Works
Overview

• Major items included:
• $230,000 for engineering fees for the Evers

Road Bridge
• The total estimated engineering fees are $460,000

and are allocated between Storm Water and the
General Fund

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $145,000 for sidewalks
• $45,000 for a Paver Hauler
• $45,000 for an asphalt roller
• $16,000 for a heated tack kettle (crack sealing)

241



Community Development
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 96,624$ 110,097$ 165,957$ 55,860$
Supplies 5,173 5,400 4,900 (500)
Contractual Services 115,812 104,243 99,763 (4,480)
Capital - - - -

TOTAL 217,609$ 219,740$ 270,620$ 50,880$

242



Community Development
Overview

• Major items included:
• $52,685 for a Planner position

243



Community Development
Contractual Category Expenditures

Community Development Services FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
     EAP and Cafeteria Plan 125 192 67
     Building & Plumbing Inspections 42,120 45,350 3,230
     Engineering Services 5,000 5,500 500
     Health Inspections 11,368 11,368 -
     Arborist 2,500 2,500 -
    Tree Mitigation Project - 15,000 15,000

61,113$ 79,910$ 18,797$
Contractual Services
     Tyler Annual Subscription Software Incode 3,591 3,591 -
     ESRI Mapping 400 400 -
     Tyler Building Permit Online 1,200 1,200 -
     Techlead Annual Email 7,972 - (7,972)
     MyPermit Now ($5,000 start up cost) - 8,000 8,000
     LC-17 24,015 - (24,015)

37,178$ 13,191$ (23,987)$

Utilities - Telephone 462 462 -
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 2,100 2,100 -
Printing 250 500 250
Advertising 850 850 -
Repairs and Maintenance - External 300 300 -
Travel - Training 800 1,500 700
Memberships, Dues & License 540 950 410
Subscription to Publication 650 - (650)
TOTAL 104,243$ 99,763$ (4,480)$

244



Economic Development
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 113,709$ 130,230$ 54,146$ (76,084)$
Supplies 3,989 5,025 4,000 (1,025)
Contractual Services 38,118 112,243 83,140 (29,103)
Capital - - -

TOTAL 155,816$ 247,498$ 141,286$ (106,212)$

245



Economic Development
Contractual Category

Economic Development FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional
     Attorney review of incentive Agreements 3,000 - (3,000)

3,000$ -$ (3,000)$
Contractual
     Incentive Rebate 80,000 50,000 (30,000)
     Consultant to Develop Community Brochure 1,600 1,000 (600)
     Notary Application, Bond, Supplies 500 500 -
     Software Updates 500 400 (100)
     EAP and Cafeteria Plan 400 240 (160)

83,000$ 52,140$ 83,000$

Utilities - Telephone 780 200 (580)
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 278 278 -
Advertising 500 400 (100)
Travel -Training 6,600 4,000 (2,600)
Memberships, Dues, Licenses 1,085 1,085 -
Ad Valorem Tax Rebate 17,000 25,037 8,037
TOTAL 112,243$ 83,140$ 84,757$

246



Special Events
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 8,850$ 12,445$ 19,757$ 7,312
Supplies 55,515 77,900 61,350 (16,550)
Contractual Services 30,000 22,500 (22,500)
Capital - - - -

TOTAL 94,365$ 112,845$ 81,107$ (31,738)$

247



Special Events

• Major items included:
• $46,000 to support the July 4th Celebration
• $12,000 for the Siclovia Event ($8,200 for event

and $3,800 for staff overtime)

248



Parks
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 63,115$ 91,182$ 82,093$ (9,089)$
Supplies 28,859 19,000 30,500 11,500
Contractual Services 50,820 76,690 99,982 23,292
Capital - 51,500 46,000 (5,500)

TOTAL 142,794$ 238,372$ 258,575$ 20,203$

249



Parks
Contractual Category Expenditures

Parks and Recreation FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   EAP and Cafeteria Plan 700 700 -
   Drainage Study - 15,000 15,000

700$ 15,700$ 15,000$
Contractual
   Tree Removal 3,000 8,000 5,000
   Pool Contract 45,000 46,302 1,302
   Pool Repairs 2,800 5,000 2,200

50,800$ 59,302$ 8,502$

Utilities - Telephone 480 480 -
Utilities - Gas, Electric 13,500 13,900 400
Printing 510 600 90
Repairs and Maintenance 10,700 10,000 (700)
   GRAND TOTAL 76,690$ 99,982$ 23,292$

250



Parks

• Major items included:
• $46,302 for the pool contract
• $15,000 drainage study

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $40,000 for improvements and or equipment

for Shadow Mist, Ridge, Old Mill Subdivision
Parks and the Aquarium  Detention Pond
Easement Trail

• $6,000 Musical Instruments for Raymond
Rimkus Park

251



Library
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 247,120$ 272,747$ 281,372$ 8,625$
Supplies 30,876 24,314 25,114 800
Contractual Services 39,053 46,249 46,414 165
Capital - 20,000 12,700 (7,300)

TOTAL 317,049$ 363,310$ 365,600$ 2,290$

252



Library
Contractual Category Expenditures

Library FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   Presenters Fees 800 800 -
   Programming Fees 550 550 -

1,350$ 1,350$ -$
Contractual Services
    Apollo/Biblionix Library System 2,300 2,500 200
    Biblionix Overdue Calls 500 500 -
    Vallance Security 1,140 1,140 -
    Techlead Backup 640 640 -
     Amigos Texpress Courier ILL 2,200 2,250 50
     Website Maintenance 754 1,800 1,046
     Fortres Grand Software Updates 200 - (200)
     CINTAS AED Defibrillator 708 - (708)
     Copier Service Agreement 700 750 50
     Ebook Content Platform 1,000 1,000 -

10,142$ 10,580$ 438$

Utilities - Telephone 6,500 4,000 (2,500)
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 13,406 14,000 594
Printing 642 642 -
Advertising 250 250 -
Repairs and Maintenance - External 4,400 5,692 1,292
Travel - Training 2,000 2,000 -
Membership,  Dues,  Licenses 1,600 1,700 100
Subscription to Publications 5,959 6,200 241
   GRAND TOTAL 46,249$ 46,414$ 165$

253



Library

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $12,700 to purchase new books for the Library

254



Communications
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 271,461$ 380,960$ 148,898$ (232,062)$
Supplies 1,058 7,300 3,500 (3,800)
Contractual Services 10,951 35,000 170,090 135,090
Capital - 23,440 (23,440)

TOTAL 283,470$ 446,700$ 322,488$ (124,212)$

255



Communications
Contractual Category Expenditures

Communications FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
CAD Annual Agreement 6,600 - (6,600)
Annual Email Agreement 9,500 9,500
ArtComm  Service Agreement 2,000 2,000
Techlead Remote Back-up 220 220

6,600$ 11,720$ 5,120$
Contractual Services
City Website Update with App 6,500 - (6,500)
Dispatch Contract (City of Helotes) - 137,970 137,970

6,500$ 137,970$ 131,470$

Printing 14,700 17,500 2,800
Repairs and Maintenance - External 1,200 1,200 -
Travel - Training 6,000 1,200 (4,800)
Memberships, Dues, Licenses 500 500
   GRAND TOTAL 35,000$ 170,090$ 134,590$

256



Water and Sewer Fund
(Enterprise Fund)

257



Overview

• Budget is balanced
• Revenues

• $4,035,269
• Operating expenses

• $4,047,768
• Operating expenses in the Water and Sewer Fund increased

$121,726 from FY 2016

• Capital
• $196,000

258



Overview

• Reflected in the budget is the approved rate
increase that will fund the new debt issued in FY
2016 for utility projects

• The revenue to retire this new debt is reflected in
a user rate increase that will increase the
monthly bill for customers as follows:
• $7.99 for customers who use 2,500 gallons of water
• $26.22 customers who use 5,000  gallons of water

259



Approved Rate Change
Comparison

Fee Old Rate New Rate Difference
Water 12.06$ 19.15$ 7.09$
Sewer 14.36$ 15.08$ 0.72$
EAA 1.55$ 1.55$ -$
Water Supply 1.07$ 1.25$ 0.18$
Stormwater 3.68$ 3.68$ -$
Total 32.72$ 40.71$ 7.99$
Increase 7.99$

Rates 2,500 Gallons Used

260



Approved Rate Change
Comparison

Fee Old Rate New Rate Difference
Water 14.76$ 30.84$ 16.08$
Sewer 17.16$ 26.74$ 9.58$
EAA 3.10$ 3.10$ -$
Water Supply 2.14$ 2.50$ 0.36$
Stormwater 3.68$ 3.68$ -$
Total 40.84$ 67.06$ 26.22$
Increase 26.22$

Rates 5,000 Gallons Used

261



Approved Rate Change
Comparison

Fee Old Rate New Rate Difference
Deposit 45.00$ 70.00$ 25.00$
TCEQ fee -$ 0.20$ 0.20$
Connect/Disconnect 20.00$ 30.00$ 10.00$
Meter Plug -$ 75.00$ 75.00$
Total 65.00$ 175.20$ 110.20$
Increase 110.00$

Other Fee Increases

262



Water Sold

 -

 20,000,000

 40,000,000

 60,000,000

 80,000,000

 100,000,000

 120,000,000

 140,000,000

 160,000,000

 180,000,000

 200,000,000

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017
Residential 189,931,000 184,014,000 176,710,000 176,710,000 176,710,000
Commercial 123,088,895 120,423,155 131,218,294 131,218,294 131,218,294

Residential

Commercial

263



Sewer Treated
in Gallons

 247,000,000

 248,000,000

 249,000,000

 250,000,000

 251,000,000

 252,000,000

 253,000,000

 254,000,000

 255,000,000

 256,000,000

 257,000,000

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017

2013 2014 2015 *2016 *2017
Sewer Treated 250,852,455 255,745,280 256,816,555 256,816,555 256,816,555

264



Water and Sewer Fund
Budget Summary

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATE BUDGET

REVENUES
   Operating Revenues 3,446,845$ 3,567,800$ 3,480,300 4,004,629$
   Non-Operating Revenues 120,677 46,000 30,500 30,640
TOTAL REVENUES 3,567,522 3,613,800 3,510,800 4,035,269

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
   Water Rights Reserve - - - 140,000
    Storm Water Fund Balance 529,200 529,200 -
     TxDot Reimbursement
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING -
SOURCES - 529,200 529,200 140,000

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 3,567,522 4,143,000 4,040,000 4,175,269

EXPENSES
  Operations 3,312,573 3,926,042 3,926,042 4,047,768
  Capital Outlay - 733,000 733,000 196,000
  Depreciation 168,948 - -
  Non-Operating Transfer Out 70,000 - - 107,141

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,551,521 4,659,042 4,659,042 4,350,909

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
WORKING CAPITAL 16,001 (1,045,242) (1,148,242) (175,640)

Ending Fund Balance 2,037,234$ 991,992$ 888,992$ 713,352$

265



Water and Sewer Fund
Expenditures by Category

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 1,140,493$ 1,223,112$ 1,328,398$ 105,286$
Supplies 117,084 134,850 131,250 (3,600)
Contractual Services 2,054,995 2,568,080 2,588,120 20,040

TOTAL 3,312,573$ 3,926,042$ 4,047,768$ 121,726$

266



Water and Sewer Fund
Operating Revenue

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Water Sales 1,125,819$ 1,210,000$ 1,584,747$ 374,747$
Sewer Sales 1,871,412 1,912,000 1,969,782 57,782
Storm Water 394,273 384,000 391,100 7,100
Other 176,018 107,800 89,640 (18,160)

TOTAL REVENUES 3,567,522$ 3,613,800$ 4,035,269$ 421,469$

267



Water and Sewer
General Administrative

Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 555,466$ 587,044$ 670,463$ 83,419$
Supplies 13,640 30,150 30,150 -
Contractual Services 100,247 81,752 68,592 (13,160)
Capital - - - -

TOTAL 669,353 698,946 769,205 70,259

268



Water General Administrative
Contractual Category Expenditures

General Administrative 2016 2017 Difference
Professional Services
     External Audit Fees (Water) 7,375 7,500 125
     Annual Software Updates Incode Billing 15,000 16,000 1,000
     Online Utility Billing Payments Fees 2,000 2,000 -
     City Attorney Fees (Water Allocation) 21,800 - (21,800)
     Neopost Envelope Stuffer Maintenance 4,000 4,000 -
     Sensus Hand Held Meter Reader Support 5,700 5,700 -
     Software Program (Sewer Average Report) 3,200 3,500 300
     Credit Card Processing Fees 7,531 8,711 1,180
     Equipment Rental (Possible) 3,400 3,400 -
     Bank Analysis Fees (Water Allocation) 2,000 2,000 -
     Postage Meter Permit 980 980 -
     Employee Public Bond 350 375 25
     EAP and Cafeteria Plan 1,026 1,026 -

74,362$ 55,192$ (19,170)$

Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 2,390 8,400 6,010
Printing 4,000 4,000 -
Advertising 1,000 1,000 -
TOTAL 81,752$ 68,592$ (13,160)$

269



Water
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 326,738$ 356,857$ 373,349$ 16,492$
Supplies 75,668 79,000 79,000 -
Contractual Services 508,853 745,880 536,255 (209,625)
Capital - 63,500 183,000 119,500

TOTAL 911,259 1,245,237 1,171,604 (73,633)

270



Water
Contractual Category Expenditures

Water FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   EAP and Cafeteria Plan 555 555 -
   Engineering Service 249,945 30,000 (219,945)

250,500$ 30,555$ (219,945)$
Contractual Services
   Uniforms 6,000 6,000 -
   H2O Samples 3,000 3,000 -
   Meter Reading Maintenance 10,000 10,000 -
   EAA Program and Management Fees 194,000 194,000 -
   TCEQ Sampling 10,700 10,700 -
   Cathodic Protection 670 670 -
   SAWS interconnect 3,545 3,545 -
   Water System Fee 5,500 5,500 -
   Water Lease Payment 82,395 82,395 -
   Annual Meter Replacement Program 10,000 10,000 -
   Tank inspections 1,500 2,000 500
   Neopost Machine 17,040 17,040 -
   SCADA System 500 1,000 500
   Incode 450 450 -

345,300$ 346,300$ 1,000$

Utilities - Telephone 8,880 13,000 4,120
Utilities/Electric, Water 75,000 80,000 5,000
Printing 2,000 2,000 -
Advertising 1,000 1,200 200
Repairs and Maintenance External 60,000 60,000 -
Equipment Rental 500 500 -
Travel/Training 2,000 2,000 -
Membership, Dues, Licenses 700 700 -
GRAND TOTAL 745,880$ 536,255$ (209,625)$

271



Water

• Major items included:
• $82,395 for water leases
• $194,000 EAA Management Fee

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $43,000 for a vacuum trailer
• $140,000 to purchase water rights

272



Sewer
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 125,123$ 135,638$ 142,341$ 6,703$
Supplies 6,598 4,700 3,100 (1,600)
Contractual Services 1,262,591 1,451,321 1,528,473 77,152
Capital - 206,000 13,000 (193,000)

TOTAL 1,394,312 1,797,659 1,686,914 (110,745)

273



Sewer
Contractual Category Expenditures

Sewer FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
EAP and Cafeteria Plan 555 555 -
Engineering Service 34,445 35,000 555

35,000$ 35,555$ 555$
Contractual
SAWS Sewer Service 1,388,621 1,462,218 73,597

1,388,621$ 1,462,218$ 73,597$

Advertising - 1,200 1,200
Repairs and Maintenance External 15,000 15,000 -
Equipment Rental 500 500 -
Sewer Surcharge 12,200 14,000 1,800
   GRAND TOTAL 1,451,321$ 1,528,473$ 77,152$

274



Sewer

• Major items included:
• $1,462,218 for sewer treatment and

transportation (SAWS)
• $35,000 for engineering fees

• Capital Acquisition Plan items included:
• $13,000 to purchase a push camera

275



Storm Water
Expenditures

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services 133,166$ 143,573$ 142,245$ (1,328)$
Supplies 21,177 21,000 19,000 (2,000)
Contractual Services 183,305 289,127 454,800 165,673
Capital - 463,500 - (463,500)

TOTAL 337,648$ 917,200$ 616,045$ (301,155)$

276



Storm Water
Contractual Category Expenditures

Storm water FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
   EAP and Cafeteria Plan 800 800 -
   Engineering Services 49,247 279,200 229,953
   Storm Water Projects 200,000 150,000 (50,000)

250,047$ 430,000$ 179,953$
Contractual
   Street Sweeping 16,000 16,000 -
   Uniforms 1,500 1,500 -
   Mapping 5,000 5,000 -
   Grissom Rd Mowing 12,500 - (12,500)

35,000$ 22,500$ (12,500)$

Printing 2,000 1,200 (800)
Travel 2,000 1,000 (1,000)
Memberships, Dues, Subscriptions 80 100 20
   GRAND TOTAL 289,127$ 454,800$ 165,673$

277



Storm Water

• Major items included:
• $279,200 for engineering fees ($230,000 Evers

Road Bridge)
• $150,000 for Storm Water projects
• $16,000 for street sweeping

278



Community Center Fund

279



Community Center
Budget Summary

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATE BUDGET

REVENUES
   Hotel Taxes 95,573$ 95,000$ 88,000$ 88,000$
   Rental Fees 86,661 90,000 52,320 81,000
TOTAL REVENUES 182,234 185,000 140,320 169,000

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
  Fund Balance - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES - - - -

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 182,234 185,000 140,320 169,000

EXPENDITURES
  Operations 98,356 187,256 187,256 157,997
  Capital Outlay 58,578 10,944 10,944 11,500
  Non-Operating Transfer 20,000 - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 176,934 198,200 198,200 169,497

Ending Fund Balance 111,437$ 98,237$ 53,557$ 54,613$

280



Community Center
Contractual Category Expenditures

Community Center Fund FY 2016 FY 2017 Difference
Professional Services
     Security Monitoring & Additional Services 9,700 8,000 (1,700)

9,700$ 8,000$ (1,700)$
Contractual Services
     Cable/Internet Services 8,000 4,600 (3,400)

8,000$ 4,600$ (5,100)$

Utilities - Telephone 10,080 10,080 -
Utilities - Gas, Water, Electric 15,800 17,500 1,700
Printing 250 300 50
Advertising 7,200 7,200 -
Repairs and Maintenance - External 3,500 4,000 500
Travel 3,528 - (3,528)
TOTAL 58,058$ 51,680$ (8,078)$

281



Community Center
Budget Overview

• Budget is balanced
• Operating Revenues - $169,000
• Operating Expenditures - $169,497
• Capital - $11,500

• Major capital items included for upgrades to
the Community Center

• $7,000 to replace exterior steel doors on
Community Center

• $4,500 to replace awnings on Community Center

282



Crime Control and Prevention

283



Crime Control and Prevention
Budget Overview

• Budget is balanced
• Operating expenditures total $271,571

• This funds the salary and benefits for
• Assistant Police Chief
• Two patrol officers
• Overtime
• Certification pay

284



Crime Control and Prevention
Budget Summary

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATE BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 114,512$ 249,283$ 249,283$ 273,473$

REVENUES
   Sales Tax 258,121$ 230,000$ 272,690$ 272,690$
TOTAL REVENUES 258,121 230,000 272,690 272,690

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(USES)
  Transfer In - - - -
  Fund Balance - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) - - - -

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 372,633 479,283 521,973 546,163

EXPENDITURES
  Operations 123,350 248,500 248,500 271,571
  Capital -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 123,350 248,500 248,500 271,571

Ending Fund Balance 249,283$ 230,783$ 273,473$ 274,592$

285



Crime Control and Prevention
Line Item

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 Increase
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET (Decrease)

Personnel Services
  Salaries 47,140 136,878 153,219 16,341
  Retirement (TMRS) 15,586 27,445 27,291 (154)
  Health Insurance 4,614 20,104 25,660 5,556
  Workers' Compensation 1,274 1,424 1,424 -
  Overtime 21,644 20,000 20,000 -
  Social Security (FICA) 7,228 14,179 15,435 1,256
  Clothing Allowance 373 - - -
  Certification Pay 23,827 28,470 28,470 -
  Longevity 1,664 - 72 72

TOTAL 123,350$ 248,500$ 271,571$ 23,071$

286



Street Maintenance
Budget Summary

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17
SOURCE ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATE BUDGET

Beginning Fund Balance 1,017,086$ 646,873$ 646,873$ 618,705$

REVENUES
   Sales Tax 549,731$ 549,416$ 562,818$ 562,818$
    Interest 354 500 500
   VIA Reimbursment 170,747 60,000 208,514 60,000
TOTAL REVENUES 720,832 609,416 771,832 623,318

TOTAL RESOURCES AVAILABLE 1,737,918 1,256,289 1,418,705 1,242,023

EXPENDITURES
  Street Maintenance 1,091,045 1,284,918 800,000 1,242,023

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,091,045 1,284,918 800,000 1,242,023

Ending Fund Balance 646,873$ (28,629)$ 618,705$ -$

287



Special Revenue Funds

• Grant Fund - $2,924
• Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education

(LEOSE) Funds for Law Enforcement Training
• Building Security Fund - $12,920

• Court bailiff
• Child Safety Fund - $14,714

• School Crossing Guard program
• Municipal Court Technology - $16,308

• Court technology related items
• Debt Service - $778,897

288



Special Revenue Funds

• Police Forfeiture - $75,316
• Seizure Funds

289



Personnel

• Funds the Merit Pay System, which allows
each employee a 2% merit increase on their
date of hire, if they qualify

• Provides for a 2% Cost of Living Adjustment
(COLA)

• Funds the continuation of longevity pay
• $4 per month for each year of service to the City

• Funds the retirement system
• Rate decreased by 1.06% 14.17% to 13.11%

290



Personnel

• As we present the proposed budget, we have
not received the final cost for the City’s Health
Insurance program

• We budgeted a 17% increase in the proposed
budget

• However, we will come back to Council for the
appropriate adjustment once we receive the final
numbers

291



Personnel

• The proposed budget includes funding for the
City’s Medical Insurance Program which
provides medical, dental, vision and life
insurance coverage

• The program provides medical insurance to
employees at no cost

• Dependent insurance cost is paid for by the
employee

292



Personnel
Continued

• Christmas Holidays
• December 23 to January 3

• Christmas is on a Sunday
• Holiday would be December 26, 27 and 28
• New Years is on a Sunday
• Holiday would be January 2

• Employees will have to use 3 days of their
Personal Leave

293



General Fund Recap

• Operating revenues over operating
expenditures

• $67,438
• Proposed uses

• Leave unappropriated to build fund balance
• Budget for Quality of Life expenditures

294



Next Steps
• Budget public hearing and formal adoption

• August 16, 2016
• First public hearing on proposed tax rate

• August 31, 2016
• Second public hearing on the proposed tax

rate
• September 6, 2016

• Formal adoption of the tax rate
• September 20, 2016

295



FY 2016
Proposed Budget

Workshop

July 19, 2016

296



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C # 2016-08-16-08

FROM: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

TO: Mayor and Council

SUBJECT: Vote to Ratify the General Fund Fiscal Year 2017 Budget that will raise
more total property taxes than last year’s budget by $164,095 or 4.4459%
and of that amount $56,826 is tax revenue to be raised from new property
added to the roll this year.

PURPOSE

During the 80th legislative session, H.B. 3195 was enacted. In order for the General
Fund Budget to be adopted that will require raising more revenue from property taxes
than in the previous year a separate vote of the governing body is required to ratify the
property tax increase reflected in the budget. A vote under this section is in addition to
and separate from the vote to adopt the budget or a vote to set the tax rate.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social - The budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control.
It addresses the goals of the City, establishes priorities, determines the level of funding
commitment, and serves as a day-to-day operations guide. The City establishes a
budget for twelve separate funds.  Activities of the General Fund, Water and Sewer
(Enterprise) Fund, Grant Fund,  Crime Control and Prevention District, Building Security
Fund, Child Safety Fund, Municipal Court Technology Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Community Center Fund, Street Maintenance Fund,  and Police Forfeiture are included
in the annual budget.

Economic - Utilizing taxpayer monies to maximize public safety, City administration and
City programs/services allows the City to actively pursue Economic Development
opportunities.

Environmental - The City’s El Verde by 2020 initiative continues to be supported
through careful allocation of budgetary dollars that promotes sustainability.

FISCAL IMPACT

The attached provides the funding mechanism for City operations for the General Fund.

STRATEGIC GOALS

N/A

ITEM 11

297



RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council vote to ratify the General Fund Fiscal Year
2017 Budget.

APPROVED: _____________________     DISAPPROVED: _____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

______________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

298



ORDINANCE No. 16-030

RATIFYING THE FY 2017 BUDGET THAT WILL RAISE MORE TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES
THAN LAST YEAR’S BUDGET BY $164,095 OR 4.4459% AND OF THAT AMOUNT $56,826 IS
TAX REVENUE TO BE RAISED FROM NEW PROPERTY ADDED TO THE ROLL THIS YEAR.

WHEREAS, during the 80th Legislative Session, the Texas legislature enacted H.B. No. 3195 to
amend Section 102.007 by adding Subsection (c) to the Texas Local Government Code; and

WHEREAS, said Subsection (c) states that the adoption of a budget to raise more revenue from
property taxes than in the previous year requires a ratification of the property tax increase reflected
in the budget; and

WHEREAS, City Council desires to raise more revenue from property taxes in the FY 2017 Budget
than in the FY 2016 Budget by $164,095 or 4.4459%; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to ratify the property tax increase reflected in the FY 2017 Budget;
NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. The General Fund Budget and associated Capital Acquisition Plan for the City of
Leon Valley, Texas, for the Fiscal Year 2017, that will raise more total property taxes than the FY
2016 Budget by $164,095 or 4.4459% is hereby ratified.

Section 2. No expenditure of the funds of the City shall be made during said fiscal year except
in strict compliance with the FY 2017 Adopted Budget.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by four (4) or
more affirmative votes of the entire City Council; otherwise, said effective date shall be ten (10)
days from the date of passage hereof.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley this the 16th

day of August, 2016.
A P P R O V E D

CHRIS RILEY
MAYOR

Attest: SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

Approved as to Form: DENISE FREDERICK
City Attorney

299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C# 2016-08-16-09

FROM: Vickie Wallace, Finance Director

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

TO: Mayor and Council

SUBJECT: Vote for the placement of a proposal to adopt the City's 2016 Tax Rate on
the agenda of September 20, 2016, Council meeting at a rate of
$0.556599/$100 valuation, which is $0.005016 lower than last year’s tax
rate of $0.561615, 6.247542% higher than the effective tax rate of
$0.523870 and is equal to the rollback tax rate.

PURPOSE

The City is proposing to adopt a tax rate of $0.556599 per $100 of property valuation for
the tax year 2016, which is $0.005016 lower than last year’s tax rate of $0.561615.
When a proposed tax rate exceeds the rollback tax rate or the effective tax rate,
whichever is lower, Chapter 26 of the Texas Property Tax Code requires the City
Council to vote to place a proposal to adopt the tax rate on the agenda of a future
meeting as an action item.

For the 2016 tax year, the proposed tax rate of $0.556599 exceeds the effective tax rate
of $0.523870 by 6.247542% and is equal to the rollback tax rate.

A record vote must be taken.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social – A responsible municipal budget strives to allocate taxpayer dollars in an efficient
and effective manner that represents all citizens equally.

Economic – Utilizing taxpayer monies to maximize public safety, city administration and
city programs/services allow the City to actively pursue Economic Development
opportunities.

Environmental – The City’s El Verde by 2020 initiative continues to be supported through
careful allocation of budgetary dollars that promotes sustainability.  Ad Valorem Taxes
are the most stable source of revenue for the General Fund.

FISCAL IMPACT

Property taxes fund the activities in the General Fund and Debt Service Fund budgets for
FY 2016.

ITEM 12

392



STRATEGIC GOALS

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

Vote for the placement of a proposal to adopt the City’s 2016 tax rate on the Agenda of
September 20, 2016.

APPROVE: ____________________ DISAPPROVE: ____________________

APPROVE WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

______________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

393



City of Leon Valley
Vote to Place a Proposal to

Adopt the Proposed 2016 Tax Rate of
$0.556599

Fiscal Year 2017
August 16, 2016

394



Overview

• When a proposed tax rate exceeds the rollback tax rate
or the effective tax rate, whichever is lower, Chapter 26
of the Texas Property Tax Code requires the City to vote
to place a proposal to adopt the tax rate on the agenda
of a future meeting as an action item

• For the 2016 tax year the proposed tax rate of
$0.556599 exceeds the effective tax rate of $0.523870
by 6.247542%
• This is a decrease in the tax rate of $0.005016 from FY 2016
• Funds the General and Debt Service Fund budgets for FY 2017

395



Overview
Continued

• Tax rate allocation

2016 2015 Difference
M&O 0.474645$ 0.471173$ 0.003472$
I&S 0.081954$ 0.090442$ (0.008488)$
TOTAL 0.556599$ 0.561615$ (0.005016)$

Tax Year

396



Next Step

• Vote to place a proposal to adopt the 2016 tax rate of
$0.556599 on the agenda of
• September 20, 2016

• The vote must be recorded

397



City of Leon Valley
August 16, 2016

398



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C #2016-08-16-10

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Vickie Wallace, Finance Director

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

SUBJECT: A call for two public hearings on the Proposed 2016 Tax Rate of
$0.556599 per $100 valuation, which is $0.005016 lower than last year’s
tax rate of $0.561615, 6.247542% higher than the effective tax rate of
$0.523870 and is equal to the rollback tax rate. The first public hearing will
be on Wednesday, August 31, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. in the City Council
Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238 and the
second public hearing will be on Tuesday, September 6, 2016, at 7:00
p.m. in the City Council Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley,
Texas 78238

PURPOSE

The City is proposing to adopt a tax rate of $0.556599 per $100 property valuation for
the tax year 2016, which is $0.005016 lower than last year’s tax rate of $0.561615.
Chapter 26 of the Texas Property Tax Code requires the City to hold two public
hearings on the proposed 2016 tax rate if the proposed tax rate exceeds the rollback tax
rate or effective tax rate, whichever is lower.  For the 2016 tax year, the proposed tax
rate of $0.556599 exceeds the effective tax rate of $0.523870 by 6.247542% and is
equal to the rollback tax rate.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social – A responsible municipal budget strives to allocate taxpayer dollars in an
efficient and effective manner that represents all citizens equally. Public Hearings
ensure the citizens of Leon Valley transparency in Government.

Economic – Utilizing taxpayer monies to maximize public safety, city administration and
city programs/services allows the City to actively pursue Economic Development
opportunities.

Environmental – The City’s El Verde by 2020 initiative continues to be supported
through careful allocation of budgetary dollars that promotes sustainability.  Ad Valorem
Taxes are the most stable source of revenue for the General Fund.

ITEM 13

399



FISCAL IMPACT

Property taxes fund the activities in the General Fund and Debt Service Fund budgets
for FY 2017.

STRATEGIC GOALS

N/A

RECOMMENDATION

Call for two public hearings on the proposed 2016 tax rate of $.556599 as follows:

First Public Hearing - Wednesday, August 31, 2016, at 5:30 p.m. in the City Council
Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238.

Second Public Hearing - Tuesday, September 6, 2016, 7:00 p.m. in the City Council
Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238.

APPROVE: ____________________ DISAPPROVE: ____________________

APPROVE WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________

ATTEST:

______________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

400



City of Leon Valley
Call for Public Hearings

on the
Proposal to Adopt the 2016 Tax Rate

of $0.556599
August 16, 2016

401



Overview

• Chapter 26 of the Texas Property Tax Code requires the
City to conduct two public hearings on the proposed
2016 tax rate if the proposed tax rate exceeds the
rollback tax rate or effective tax rate, whichever is lower

• For the 2016 tax year the proposed tax rate of
$0.556599 exceeds the effective tax rate of $0.523870
by 6.247542%
• This is a decrease in the tax rate of $0.005016 from FY 2016
• Funds the General and Debt Service Fund budgets for FY 2017

402



Overview

• The City will conduct the following public hearings on the
proposed 2016 tax rate of $0.556599

• First public hearing
• Wednesday, August 31, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. at the City Council

Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238
Texas 78238

• Second public hearing
• Tuesday, September 6, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Council

Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238
Texas 78238

403



Next Step

• Vote to conduct two public hearings on the proposed
2016 tax of $0.556599 on
• Wednesday, August 31, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. at the City Council

Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238
78238

• Tuesday, September 6, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Council
Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238
78238

404



City of Leon Valley
August 16, 2016

405



MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: August 16, 2016 M&C # 2016-08-16-11

TO: Mayor and Council

FROM: Saundra Passailaigue, City Secretary

THROUGH: Kelly Kuenstler, City Manager

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 16-021R of the City Council of the City of
Leon Valley ordering and establishing procedures for a Special Election in
the City of Leon Valley, Texas to rededicate the use of the Section 4B
Sales and Use Tax to general revenue at the rate of 1/8 percent for the
purpose of economic development and other uses at the city council's
discretion by the qualified voters of the City of Leon Valley; authorizing the
City Manager to sign a joint election Agreement with the Bexar County
Elections Administrator for the conduct of said election, and providing
details relating to the conduct of holding the Election, authorizing the use of
the Leon Valley Conference Center for Early Voting (October 24, 2016
through November 04, 2016) and the Leon Valley City Hall on the 8th day
of November, 2016, for Election Day voting.

PURPOSE

A resolution ordering a Special Election in the City of Leon Valley, Texas, to be held on
November 08, 2016 to rededicate the use of the Section 4B Sales and Use Tax to general
revenue at the rate of 1/8 percent for the purpose of economic development and other uses at
the city council's discretion, to be held for the City of Leon Valley; and designating Jacquelyn
F. Callanen, Bexar County Elections Administrator, as the Election Administrator to conduct
such election.

BACKGROUND

The City may contract with Bexar County to participate in the Joint Election, which will make
the voting process more convenient for the citizens of Leon Valley and also significantly
reduce the cost to the City for conducting the election.

In a Joint Election situation, the City will appoint Jacquelyn F. Callanen, Bexar County
Elections Administrator, as the Election Administrator of the election in the resolution ordering
the Election. The County will conduct both Early Voting and Election Day operations. During
the Early Voting period, citizens of Leon Valley will be able to vote at any designated Bexar
County polling place for the elections of the City. The election staff, voting forms, and
equipment will be provided by the Bexar County Elections Division. The City will still be
responsible for producing the required documents, notifications and reporting and canvassing
of the election results.

ITEM 14

406



Participating members of the Joint Election are charged for Bexar County Elections Division
services and equipment on a pro-rata basis. The process to determine the cost per city is as
follows:

 The total number of voting precincts for the participating entities is determined.
 The number of voting precincts for each participant is divided by the total number

of voting precincts.
 The number obtained is the percentage of the total cost of the election that the

entity pays.

The City Secretary will be responsible for posting all public notices in connection with the Joint
Election. The Bexar County Elections Administrator shall be responsible for publishing a
Notice of Election in a newspaper of general circulation in the territory as required of all the
Entities under § 4.003 of the Election Code.

SEE LEON VALLEY

Social – The electoral process enables residents of Leon Valley who are qualified voters to
engage in the promotion and provision of a superior quality of life.
Economic – Not applicable

Environmental – Not applicable.

FISCAL IMPACT

The City will see a cost savings by participating in the Joint Election. Cost of this election is
authorized in the current Fiscal Year Budget.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A – Resolution – Order and Notice
Attachment B – Proposed Agreement
Attachment C – Early Voting Calendar

RECOMMENDATION

City staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached Resolution No. 16-021R, ordering a
Special Election in the City of Leon Valley, Texas, to be held jointly with Bexar County for the
Joint, General and other elections on the 8th day of November, 2016 which is the second
Tuesday in November 2016 for the purpose of voting to rededicate the use of the Section 4B
Sales and Use Tax to general revenue at the rate of 1/8 percent for the purpose of economic
development and other uses at the city council's discretion, by the qualified voters of the City of
Leon Valley; authorizing the City Manager to sign a joint election Agreement with the Bexar
County Elections Administrator for the conduct of said election, and providing details relating to
the conduct of holding the Election, authorizing the use of the Leon Valley Conference Center for
Early Voting (October 24, 2016 through November 04, 2016) and the Leon Valley City Hall on
the 8th day of November, 2016, for Election Day voting.

407



APPROVED: _____________________ DISAPPROVED: ____________________

APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS:
___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

____________

ATTEST:

________________________________
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC
City Secretary

408



JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between Bexar County Elections Administrator
(“ADMINISTRATOR”), acting on behalf of Bexar County; with Edwards Aquifer Authority
(“EAA”); East Central Independent School District (“ECISD”); Edgewood Independent School
District (“EISD”); San Antonio Independent School District (:SAISD”); Schertz Cibolo
Universal City Independent School District (“SCUCISD”);Somerset Independent School District
(“SISD”); South San Antonio Independent School District (“SSAISD”); the City of Alamo
Heights (“COAH”); Converse (“COC”); the City of Leon Valley (“COLV”); the City of Sandy
Oaks (“COSO”); the City of Schertz (COS”); the City of Windcrest (“COW”); Bexar County
W.C.I.D.# 10 (BCWCID#10) and Green Valley Special Utility District (“GVSUD”); they may
also be referred to, individually, as an “Entity” or, collectively, as the “Entities,” acting by and
through their duly appointed and qualified representatives, pursuant to Texas Election Code
Section 271.002(a), for the November 8, 2016 election.

WHEREAS, EAA will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, ECISD will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, EISD will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, SAISD will conduct a bond election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, SCUCISD will conduct a bond election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, SISD will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, SSAISD will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, COCAH will conduct a special election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, COC will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, COLV will conduct a special election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, COSO will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, COS will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, COW will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, BCWCID#10 will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016;

WHEREAS, GVSUD will conduct a general election on Tuesday, November 8, 2016; and

WHEREAS, Section 271.002(a) of the Texas Election Code authorizes two or more political
subdivisions to enter into an agreement to hold elections jointly in the election precincts that can
be served by common polling places; and

409



2

WHEREAS, the Entities desire that a joint election be held in order to provide a convenient,
simple, and cost-saving election to the voters in their respective jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the Entities desire to enter into an agreement setting out their respective duties and
responsibilities for the November 8, 2016 election;

NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed that the Entities will hold a joint election on Tuesday,
November 8, 2016 (the “Joint Election”) under the following terms and conditions:

I.

The Entities are each required to enter into their own separate contract with ADMINISTRATOR
for election services and will hold elections jointly with other Entities in the election precincts
that can be served by common polling places, using joint election officer and clerks as
ADMINISTRATOR determines is necessary and appropriate.

II.

The Entities agree to conduct early voting jointly. ADMINISTRATOR will arrange for and
handle early voting in person and by mail for the Joint Election in accordance with her contracts
with those Entities.

III.

The Entities agree that a single ballot, containing all the measures and offices to be voted on at a
particular polling place, shall be used in this Joint Election.

IV.

Each Entity is responsible for its own posting of public notices in connection with the Joint
Election.  ADMINISTRATOR shall be responsible for publishing a Notice of Election in a
newspaper of general circulation in the territory as required of all the Entities under Section
4.003 of the Election Code, and each Entity shall pay ADMINISTRATOR its proportionate
share of the publishing cost.

V.

Each Entity is responsible for paying ADMINISTRATOR for any and all other election costs, as
applicable to the specific Entity and agreed upon by separate contract for election services
between each Entity and ADMINISTRATOR.

VI.

ADMINISTRATOR will tabulate the ballots and provide a set of copies of the affidavit page of
each return along with the returns of the election, as agreed upon by separate contract between
each Entity and ADMINISTRATOR.

VII.

410



3

Each Entity will be responsible for canvassing its respective precinct returns for the Joint
Election.

VIII.

The Entities agree to comply with any and all applicable state and federal record retention
statutes. Each Entity shall be the custodian of its respective election records.

IX.

If an Entity determines not to participate in the Joint Election to be held on Tuesday, November
8, 2016, because it has no contested positions, the nonparticipating Entity shall promptly notify
ADMINISTRATOR and the other Entities, and this Agreement shall be automatically amended
to delete the nonparticipating Entity as a party to the Agreement.

X.

The undersigned persons are the duly authorized signatories of their Entities, and their signatures
represent acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, as passed and approved by
their respective governing bodies.

XI.

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts. Together the counterparts shall be
deemed an executed original instrument. The Entities may execute this Agreement and exchange
counterparts of the signature pages by means of facsimile transmission, and the receipt of
executed counterparts by facsimile transmission shall be binding on the Entities. Following a
facsimile exchange, the Entities shall promptly exchange original signature pages.

SIGNED and AGREED this _________ day of ____________________, 2016.

BEXAR COUNTY ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATOR

________________________________________
Jacquelyn F. Callanen

ENTITY: ___________________________________

BY: _______________________________________

TITLE: ____________________________________

411



JOINT GENERAL ELECTION
ELECCION CONJUNTO

NOVEMBER 8, 2016
8 de noviembre de 2016

THE HOURS OF EARLY VOTING WILL BE: (LAS HORAS Y FECHAS DE VOTACION
ADELANTADA SERAN:)

Mon., Oct. 24 thru Fri., Oct. 28 ............................................................... 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Lunes 24 de octubre de 2016 hasta el viernes 28 de octubre de 2016 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Sat., Oct. 29, 2016 ................................................................................... 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Sabado 29 de octubre de 2016............................................................... 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Sun., Oct. 30, 2016 ................................................................................12:00 noon – 6:00 p.m.
Domingo 30 de octubre de 2016 ..........................................................12:00 noon – 6:00 p.m.
Mon., Oct. 31 thru Fri., Nov. 4................................................................. 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Lunes 31 de octubre de 2016 hasta el viernes 4 de noviembre de 2016 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

October 24, 2016 – November 4, 2016

SUN MON TUES WED THURS FRI SAT
23 24

******
25
******

26
******

27
******

28
******

29
**********

30
******

31
******

1
******

2
******

3
******

4
******

5

6 7 8
ELECTION
DAY

Legend: ******** Indicates dates open for early voting

Main Early Voting Location:(Localidad Principal de Votacion Adelantada:)

BEXAR COUNTY ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT…………………………………….. 1103 S. Frio

DEAFLINK available for the hearing impaired

In addition to the main early polling place, early voting will be conducted at the following
locations:  (Ademas de la localidad principal, votacion adelantada se llevara a cabo en
las siguiente localidades:)

***BEXAR COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER................................................................300 Dolorosa
BROOKHOLLOW LIBRARY……………………………………………………….530 Heimer Road
CASTLE HILLS CITY HALL… (SE CORNER OF COUNCIL CHAMBERS)……….209 Lemonwood Dr.

412



CLAUDE BLACK CENTER...................................................................... 2805 East Commerce
CODY LIBRARY...................................................................................... 11441 Vance Jackson
COLLINS GARDEN LIBRARY ............................................................................200 North Park
CONVERSE CITY HALL – Conference Room………….……..………………. 405 S. Seguin Rd
COPERNICUS COMMUNITY CENTER………………………………….…………. 5003 Lord Rd.
EAST CENTRAL ISD ADMIN BUILDING.............................. 6634 New Sulphur Springs Road
ENCINO BRANCH LIBRARY………………………………………..….….… 2515 East Evans Rd.
FAIR OAKS RANCH CITY HALL… (Council Chambers)……………..…..7286 Dietz Elkhorn
GREAT NORTHWEST LIBRARY……………………………………………........... 9050 Wellwood
HENRY A. GUERRA, JR. LIBRARY.....................................….….…….…7978 W Military Drive
JOHN IGO LIBRARY…………......................................................     13330 Kyle Seale Parkway
JOHNSTON LIBRARY ............................................................................ 6307 Sun Valley Drive
JULIA YATES SEMMES LIBRARY @ Comanche Lookout Park............. 15060 Judson Road
LAS PALMAS LIBRARY........................................................................... 515 Castroville Road
LEON VALLEY CONFERENCE CENTER……….………….……………………….6421 Evers Rd
LION’S FIELD.................................................................................................... .2809 Broadway
MAURY MAVERICK, JR. LIBRARY............................................................... .8700 Mystic Park
MCCRELESS LIBRARY……………..………………….………………...….… 1023 Ada Street
MEMORIAL LIBRARY……………………………………………………….…….……. 3222 Culebra
MISSION LIBRARY………………...……………...…………………...……. 3134 Roosevelt Ave.
NORTHSIDE ACTIVITY CENTER……………………………………………..............7001 Culebra
NORTHWEST VISTA COLLEGE……………………………..………………… 3535 N. Ellison Dr.
OLMOS CITY HALL…………………………..……………………….………..……..120 El Prado W
PALO ALTO COLLEGE………………………………………………….…… 1400 W. Villaret Blvd.
PARMAN LIBRARY@Stone Oak……………………………………….…. 20735 Wilderness Oak
PRECINCT 1 SATELLITE OFFICE…………………………………………... 3505 Pleasanton Rd.
SAN ANTONIO COMMUNITY COLLEGE (ECO Centro Bldg)……...…………….. 1802 N. Main
SHAVANO PARK CITY HALL… (COUNCIL CHAMB)..…………………...     900 Saddletree Ct
SOMERSET ISD ADMIN BLDG (Bldg 206) ......................................... 7791 6th St., Somerset
SOUTH SAN ANTONIO ISD ADMIN BLDG……………………………………... 5622 Ray Ellison
SOUTH PARK MALL………………………………………………………….……2310 S.W. Military
SOUTHSIDE ISD ADMIN BLDG… (BOARD ROOM)…………………..…1460 Martinez-Losoya
THOUSAND OAKS/EL SENDERO LIBRARY…………………………..… 4618 Thousand Oaks
TOBIN LIBRARY @OAKWELL………………………………………….... . 4134 Harry Wurzbach
UNIVERSAL CITY – CITY HALL.................................................... 2150 Universal City Blvd.
UTSA (Bexar Room)…………………………………………………….….…….… 1 UTSA Circle
WINDCREST TAKAS PARK CIVIC CENTER……………..………….…....……9310 Jim Seal Dr.
WONDERLAND MALL OF THE AMERICAS @ CROSSROADS …….…..4522 Fredericksburg

*** Early Voting Conducted at the Justice Center will be open 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. each
weekday and CLOSED on the weekend.

subject to change
(sujeto a cambio)

For more information contact the office of the Bexar County Elections Administrator,
Jacquelyn F. Callanen, at (210) 335-VOTE (8683)
(Para mas informacion comuniquese con oficina del Condado de Bexar Administrador de
Elecciones, Jacquelyn F. Callanen, al telefono (210) 335-VOTE (8683))

413



City of Leon Valley

Ordering the Special Election, and Appointing
Jacquelyn F. Callanen, Bexar County Elections

Administrator as Election Administrator.
City Council Meeting

Tuesday, August 16, 2016

414



Summary

• Consideration of Resolution No. 16-021R Ordering a
Special Election on November 08, 2016 to rededicate
the use of the Section 4B Sales and Use Tax to
general revenue at the rate of 1/8 percent for the
purpose of economic development and other uses at
the city council's discretion.

• Option to participate with Bexar County in a Joint
Election and appointing Jacquelyn Callanen, Bexar
County Elections Administrator, as Election
Administrator.

415



Background

• The City has an option to participate in the
Bexar County Joint Election to increase
convenience to citizens and reduce expenses.

- Bexar County conducts both Early Voting and Election Day
Activities

- Bexar County provides election staff, equipment and supplies
- Participating entities are charged on a pro-rata basis
- If election is cancelled, City drops out and owes nothing to

Bexar County

416



Background (cont’d)
• Early Voting

– Citizens will be able to vote at any designated Bexar
County polling location for the City.

• Leon Valley Conference Center, 6421 Evers Road, Leon Valley,
Texas and a list of other poll sites within the County will be
available on the City’s website.

– October 24, 2016 – November 04, 2016

• Election Day Voting
– Citizens will be able to vote at the Leon Valley City

Hall, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas.
• November 08, 2016 (which is the SECOND Tuesday in

November)

417



Fiscal Impact

• City will see a cost savings by participating in
this Joint Election.

• Cost of this election is authorized in the
current Fiscal Year.

418



S.E.E. IMPACT STATEMENT

• Social Equity – The electoral process enables
residents of Leon Valley who are qualified
voters to engage in the promotion and
provision of a superior quality of life through
the determination of its elected leadership.

• Economic Development – Not applicable
• Environmental Stewardship – Not applicable

419



Recommendation
• City staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached

Resolution No. 16-021R ordering and establishing procedures for a
Special Election in the City of Leon Valley, Texas to vote to
rededicate the use of the Section 4B Sales and Use Tax to general
revenue at the rate of 1/8 percent for the purpose of economic
development and other uses at the city council's discretion;
authorizing the City Manager to sign a joint election Agreement
with the Bexar County Elections Administrator for the conduct of
said election, and providing details relating to the conduct of
holding the Election, authorizing the use of the Leon Valley
Conference Center for Early Voting (October 24, 2016 through
November 04, 2016) and the Leon Valley City Hall on the 8th day of
November, 2016, for Election Day voting.

420



City of Leon Valley

Ordering the Special Election, and Appointing
Jacquelyn F. Callanen, Bexar County Elections

Administrator as Election Administrator.
City Council Meeting

Tuesday, August 16, 2016

421



ITEM 15a

422



423



424



425



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436


	Posted Amended Agenda.pdf
	DRAFT 08-02-2016 Regular CC Minutes.pdf
	1 M&C Council Request(3).pdf
	2 Resolution No. 16-018R.pdf
	1 MC SAWS Permanent Water Easement Well Project 8-16-16.pdf
	2 SAWS Parcel P16-100 Grass Hill Well Site Water Esmt (2).pdf
	3 SAWS Parcel P16-100 Grass Hill Well Site Water Esmt Field Notes (3).pdf
	4 ORD SAWS Permanent Water Easement Well Project 8-16-16.pdf
	5 Permanent Easement - Water.pdf
	6 PPT SAWS.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1 MC Hodges Street Traffic Mitigation 08-16-16.pdf
	FINAL Hodges Tech Memo 08-09-2016.pdf
	TOC
	Section 1.0
	Section 2.0
	Section 3.0
	Section 4.0
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	PPT Hodges Drive Engineering Study 8-16-16.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1 MC #2016-08-16-LVEDC BUDGET.pdf
	2 Resolution No. 16-019R        LVEDC BUDGET.pdf
	3 Attachment A-LVEDC FY 2016-2017 Proposed Budget.pdf
	4 LVEDC Proposed Budget FY 2016-2017.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1 MC #2016-08-16-XX KINMAN HOUSE.pdf
	2 Resolution No. 16-019R  Kinman House Project.pdf
	3 LVEDC Kinman House Project Power Point.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1 MC budget Public Hearing.pdf
	2 Budget Ordinance 2016.pdf
	3 20160812081813136.pdf
	4 2017 budget PowerPoint Public Hearing.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	1 MC to ratify budget.pdf
	2 Ratify Budget Ordinance.pdf
	3 Budget to attach to Ordinance.pdf
	1 placement of tax rate on agenda.pdf
	2 Vote to place a proposal to adopt tax rate FY 2017.pdf
	
	
	
	
	

	1 call for public hearings.pdf
	2 Call for public tax hearings FY 2017.pdf
	
	
	
	
	

	X1 MC Calling the Election.pdf
	X2 Joint_Election_Agreement_MOU_ clean.pdf
	X3 Early Voting Calendar.pdf
	X4 PP Election 8-16-2016 (clean CA).pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	06-22-16 Regular LVEDC Minutes.pdf
	20160802070053678.pdf
	20160810084849079.pdf
	TAB Minutes 7-11-2016.pdf

